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WHO WE ARE

Founded in 1875, the Royal National Agricultural
and Industrial Association of Queensland (RNA)
is an independent, not-for-profit member based
association that has freehold title to the iconic
Brisbane Showgrounds.
The RNA’s charter is to celebrate and champion
the essential role agriculture plays in the
everyday lives of Queenslanders.
It aims to provide a vibrant destination with
leading educational and event facilities and
activities that capture the hearts and minds of
all Queenslanders, from the country to the city.
Governed by 21 elected Councillors, the RNA
represents more than 5,000 members across
Queensland and further afield, many whose
families have been involved with the RNA
for generations.

WHAT WE DO… OUR BUSINESS FOCUS
ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW [EKKA]
The Royal Queensland Show, fondly known by Queenslanders as Ekka, is Queensland’s largest
and most loved annual event. It is run by the RNA on behalf of the community for 10 days each
year in August. While providing entertainment and fun, the show is also the platform for some
serious competition, attracting more than 21,000 entries across 48 competition sections each
year. International and national judges – experts in their field – attend to judge and award the best
in agriculture, fine arts, horse events, canine and feline, beef and dairy cattle, boer goats, fleece,
poultry and birds, pisciculture, woodchop and sawing and more. It also provides an important
educational focus for students who compete for awards in art, literature and multimedia. The Ekka
has always been a place for businesses to show and sell their wares, it’s Queensland’s largest and
most targeted marketplace attracting more than 300 retailers.

ROYAL QUEENSLAND FOOD & WINE SHOW [RQFWS]
Launched in 2009, the Royal Queensland Food & Wine Show is designed to recognise and
reward outstanding producers and their produce through its individual competitions: Cheese and
Dairy Produce, Ice cream, Gelato & Sorbet, Branded Beef, Branded Lamb, Wine, Ham, bacon &
smallgoods and Sausage King. This competition has grown rapidly in recognition and awareness
throughout the industry and is known as Queensland’s premier food and wine competition.

ROYAL INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION CENTRE & BRISBANE
SHOWGROUNDS VENUES
The Brisbane Showgrounds is a venue business which hosts more than 200 events each year
including music festivals, lifestyle exhibitions and conferences across its 22 hectares.

RNA ANNUAL REPORT 2015
WHO WE ARE

The Royal International Convention Centre is a boutique, two-level building featuring three halls,
seven adaptable meeting rooms, two boardrooms, an open foyer, 140 car parks, and state-of-theart rigging and catering facilities.
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PRESIDENT’S

REPORT

2015 marked the 140 year
anniversary of the RNA –
our iconic association
dedicated to championing
and celebrating agriculture
and showcasing the
best of the best.
Since 1875 to today that remains our
mission - our core purpose to ensure
future generations understand the
essential role agriculture plays in their
everyday lives.
At our first show in 1876, the agricultural
section featured 900 entries across
horses, cattle, sheep, pigs, poultry,
dogs, wine, wool, sugar, farm and dairy
produce, horticulture and fibres. In 2015
our livestock entry numbers were 7,752
across beef, dairy, poultry and horses
and they continue to grow.
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From the food we eat to the clothes we
wear, everything starts with agriculture.
It’s this driving vision that is helping
create a legacy we can all be proud
of – our landmark $2.9 billion Brisbane
Showgrounds Regeneration Project
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with 2015 marking the fifth year of
construction. The RNA embarked on
this transformation project with the
aim of achieving two vital goals for
the benefit of not just RNA members,
but the people of Queensland. The
objectives were to ensure that the Royal
Queensland Show (Ekka) will remain at
its original birthplace (the Showgrounds),
and to underpin the long term financial
viability of our association.
Ensuring our financial viability is
most important as this supports our
mission of celebrating, showcasing
and championing agriculture and
industry especially through staging our
prestigious competitions.
Transforming the showgrounds into a
year round vibrant destination precinct
delivers on our long term business
strategy of diversifying operations so
we can continue to invest in a bigger
and better Ekka each year. Over the
past 12 months several important
redevelopment milestones have been
reached which are starting to deliver on
these diversified income streams.

In 2015, construction on stage two
of the regeneration continued on the
second residential phase known as The
Yards and the new King Street precinct,
which opened to traffic in February
2016 coinciding with the opening of
the 4.5 star Rydges Hotel. We also
welcomed our first residents to The
Green with settlements being finalised in
January 2016.
The completion of the 208 room hotel is
a major step forward for our association
as it provides crucial accommodation
onsite for the year round events
which happen on the showgrounds,
Royal International Convention Centre
(Royal ICC) and Ekka patrons. This
revitalisation of the showgrounds,
including the state of the art Royal
ICC which is now in its fourth year of
operation, helps generate year round
vitality for our evolving precinct.

“The most inspiring part of the
2015 Ekka was the fact that
even with the crippling impact
drought is having, our exhibitors
still made their way to show...”

For the RNA to achieve such an
ambitious project, the support of our
long term major event clients has been
critical. Three of the biggest events held
at the Showgrounds each year have
committed to the redevelopment journey
with us. We are very grateful to them for
their loyalty and support, in particular Ron
Chapman and Jason Plant (Caravan and
Camping Show); Paul Mathers (National
4x4, Boating and Fishing Expo); and Boris
Zoulek (Oktoberfest).
These events have become synonymous
with the Showgrounds. Generations of

families have been coming to Caravan
and Camping for 37 years in a row. The
4x4 show continues to attract huge
crowds while Oktoberfest has become
the pre-eminent German festival in
Brisbane each year. They have been
loyal to us even through the disruption
such a large scale project can cause.
The redevelopment is not just a major
milestone for the RNA, it is a major
milestone for Brisbane. We greatly
appreciate their willingness to support our
vision and we look forward to enjoying
with them the benefits our world class
events destination precinct will bring.
For the second year in a row, the 2015
Ekka was held over two full weekends
and featured more than 21,000
competition entries, a new fireworks and
night show spectacular, 10,000 animals
plus the wonderful show traditions which
lie at the heart of Ekka.
For the first time, the RNA’s Charity
Fundraiser was held on the eve of Ekka
in line with our charter of helping and
educating rural youth. More than 550

guests showed their support and as a
result, 112 iPads were donated to the
Longreach and Charleville districts –
57 more than the original goal of 55.
The incredible generosity and support
shown at the charity fundraiser was felt
throughout the 10 days of show as the
general public got behind our overarching
message to support the bush during this
heart breaking drought.
The Ekka is all about bringing the country
to the city and we urged metropolitan
families to think about the hardships
farming families are enduring during the
worst drought in living memory. The most
inspiring part of the 2015 Ekka was the
fact that even with the crippling impact
drought is having, our exhibitors still made
their way to show despite the day to day
hardships they face.
For 140 years the RNA has relied on
the goodwill and commitment of our
volunteers to stage the Ekka. Once again
we are indebted to the tireless work
of almost 800 volunteers who came
together to ensure another successful
show was staged. I would also like to
sincerely thank my fellow councillors for
their invaluable efforts and enthusiasm
and pay tribute to the association’s staff,
volunteers, judges and stewards for their
hard work during the year.

David Thomas
PRESIDENT
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Over the next two years, planned works
include construction of our large animal
pavilion, King’s Co-op, creation of
Alexandria Park, refurbishment works on
Oval 2 and surrounding areas, completion
of Machinery and Alexandria streets and
the progressive opening of retail in the
King Street precinct.
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“2015 was a very successful year
for the redevelopment project ...
it ensures the delivery of long-term
annuity assets for the RNA.”
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REPORT

2015 marked the final year of the RNA’s three year strategic plan which commenced in 2013.
The plan’s guiding principle has been on achieving sustainable growth in the following key areas:
The Royal Queensland Show
(Ekka) and competition platform
(RQS and Royal Queensland Food
& Wine Show);

•

The conference and exhibition
business including the Royal ICC,
adjoining Plaza and Brisbane
Showgrounds precinct venues;

•

Place making – the creation of a
new urban precinct for Brisbane
with the introduction of residential,
retail and commercial businesses.

In Year 1 (2013) we focused on
establishing a solid framework for
success, improving our processes,
operating practices and building
workplace expertise. Year 2 (2014) was
all about consolidating, and refining
these businesses while 2015 focused
on improving efficiencies and evolving
the businesses and most importantly
securing long term certainty through
our $2.9 billion Brisbane Showgrounds
Regeneration Project.
2015 was a very successful year for the
redevelopment project. The project
ensures the development and delivery
of long-term annuity assets for the RNA
which are a key component of our
diversification strategy. During the year
there were significant breakthroughs
relating to the delivery of our core
annuity assets. Specifically, the large
animal pavilion carpark has
commenced design as has the new
Co-Op scheme on King Street.
Residential sales to the end of
December 31, 2014 and construction
of stage two works has resulted in
projected future non-operating revenue
of approximately $19 million for the
RNA. The RNA has recorded a net
redevelopment revenue in 2015, of $6.4
million (funds to be deposited into the
RNA Development Fund), resulting from

the settlement of K1 Commercial Tower
and The Green residential apartments.
In 2015, construction on stage two of
the regeneration project continued on
the second residential phase known as
The Yards and the new King Street
precinct, which opened to traffic in
February coinciding with the opening of
the 4.5 star Rydges Hotel. Importantly,
the hotel now provides crucial onsite
accommodation for our venue business.
While 2015 proved a challenging year
for the RNA recording an EBITDA loss
of $348,944, our long term financial
future is secure. Our strategic planning
has assured that while the RNA will
experience marginal and tight EBITDA
levels for the next decade until the
annuity assets start returning cash flow,
the association is in a very secure
position financially in the long term.
2015 was a difficult year for our venue
business due to a downturn in
the Brisbane events industry; however
the early indications in 2016 are
very positive with excellent first
quarter growth.

continued investment and growth.
In 2015 we continued to work hard on
fostering and developing our culture as
our precinct and businesses continue
to rapidly evolve. I would like to
sincerely thank the efforts of all staff for
their commitment and effort during the
year. On behalf of all staff I express our
thanks to President David Thomas and
Council for their guidance, vision and
collaboration throughout the year and
our RNA members for their continued
support of our association.
2016 is shaping up as another exciting
year as we welcome the first retailers to
King Street; strong growth for our Royal
ICC venue business; staging
Queenslander’s biggest event the Ekka
in August and the continued evolution
of our Brisbane Showgrounds precinct.

Brendan Christou
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As we move into our next strategic
planning phases, we are working on a
five to 10 year Ekka strategy specifically
looking at positioning, relevance and
growth strategies to ensure the show
continues to expand into new
demographics and key markets both
locally, nationally and internationally.
Our guiding vision at the RNA is to
champion and celebrate agriculture and
ensure the public understand the
important role agriculture plays. This
remains our major driving force and the
reason we exist. We showcase our
charter primarily through staging our
food and wine competitions and the
Ekka, while our other business units
support this by providing the revenue for
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DELIVERING

OUR STRATEGY

YEAR IN REVIEW
2015 was a challenging year for the RNA, resulting in an
EBITDA loss for the year of $348,944. This was primarily due
to lower than forecasted venue sales which was a direct result
of a downturn in the business events industry in Brisbane.
In 2015 the association’s overall turnover, excluding net
redevelopment revenue, decreased by 7.4% per cent
from $32.3 million in 2014 to $29.9 million. Event revenue
generated by the Royal International Convention Centre
(Royal ICC) and the Brisbane Showgrounds in 2015
(excluding the Royal Queensland Show – Ekka) totalled
$13.7 million, a decrease of $2.4 million from $16.1 million in
2014. Ekka turnover remained reasonably static in 2015. The
long-term RNA strategy focuses on diversifying our income
streams. We are also building our venue business, primarily
through the introduction of the Royal ICC plus focusing on
growth within Ekka.
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The Royal ICC has just completed its third year of operation
and we are now starting to see the stabilised earnings level
that will be generated from this business unit. While 2015
was a difficult sales year, the operations team delivered a high
quality product - particularly within the food and beverage
and service areas. We have a strong linkage back to our
Royal Queensland Food & Wine Show competition winners
within our menus which allows us to serve our charter of
celebrating and championing agriculture. 2016 is already
shaping up to be a much stronger year in terms of sales for
the Royal ICC.
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Efficiency gains and an overall reduction in our fixed costs
has helped lessen the impact of decreased revenues. EBITDA
levels will continue to be marginal for the next decade until
the annuity assets being created through the redevelopment
project return cash flow to the RNA. Under our project
agreement, earnings from the annuity assets are retained
within the RNA development fund and quarantined for use
towards development project costs. This is all part of our
long-term strategic planning, and requires a very disciplined
approach to cash flow management until these assets are
returned to the RNA.

2015 was a very successful year for the redevelopment
project, which ensures the development and delivery of longterm annuity assets for the RNA - a key component of our
diversification strategy. During the year there were significant
milestones achieved relating to the delivery of our core
annuity assets. Specifically, the large animal pavilion carpark
has commenced design as has the new Co-Op scheme on
King Street.
Residential sales to the end of December 31, 2014 and
construction of stage two works has resulted in projected
future non-operating revenue of approximately $19 million
for the RNA. The RNA has recorded a net redevelopment
revenue in 2015, of $6.4 million (funds to be deposited into
the RNA Development Fund), resulting from the settlement of
K1 Commercial Tower and The Green residential apartments.
In 2015, construction on stage two of the project continued
on the second residential phase known as The Yards and the
new King Street precinct, which opened to traffic in February
coinciding with the opening of the 4.5 star Rydges Hotel.

MISSION
The RNA was formed in 1875 with a charter to promote and
encourage the development of the agricultural, pastoral,
horticultural, industrial, manufacturing and cultural resources
of Queensland.
Today the RNA is continuing this mission by actively
championing agriculture by showcasing and rewarding
the very best of the best through our Royal Queensland Show
(Ekka) and Royal Queensland Food & Wine
Show competitions.
The RNA’s education programs and promotions are designed
to advocate for agriculture and reflect the association’s
core charter.
The RNA is committed to ensuring the community recognises
the vital role agriculture plays in everyday life.

RETIRING COUNCILLORS

In October 2015, Jan
McMillan retired from
the RNA Council. A
Thoroughbred breeder, Ms
McMIllan is a national and
international horse judge
and an owner of racehorses
and show horses. She
brought great expertise to the RNA Council since
her election in 1997. In 2007 she became the first
female Ringmaster in the history of the RNA. During
her time on the RNA Council she was an active
member of the Executive Committee, Chair of the
Horse and Arena, Quilts Committees and a member
of the Entertainment, Entries, Veterinary and Joint
Stock Committees.

Tim Fairfax AC
RNA Councillor Tim Fairfax
AC retired in October, 2015
from the RNA Council. He
joined the Council in 2004
and served as Chairman
of the Horticulture and
Pisciculture Committees
and as a member of the
Appeals and Disciplinary and Audit Committees. A
grazier and philanthropist, he is Chancellor of the
Queensland University of Technology, President of the
Queensland Art Gallery Foundation, Chairman of the
Salvation Army Brisbane Advisory Board, Chairman
of the Vincent Fairfax Family Foundation and the Tim
Fairfax Family Foundation, Director of the Foundation
for Rural and Regional Renewal and Councillor of
Philanthropy Australia.
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Jan McMillan
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PLACEMAKING
OVERVIEW
The $2.9 billion, Brisbane
Showgrounds Regeneration
Project is one of the largest
mixed-use, urban regeneration
projects in Australia and once
completed will be the place
where more than 15,000 people
will live, work and play.

The continued revitalisation of the
showgrounds generates year round vitality
throughout the precinct, while ensuring the
Royal Queensland Show (Ekka) remains
on the site where it all began in 1876. The
Brisbane Showgrounds is fast becoming
Queensland’s most prominent events and
lifestyle precinct, while at the same time
preserving the site’s heritage for future
generations to enjoy.
Stage one, which is now complete,
included the construction and completion

of the state-of-the-art Royal International
Convention Centre (Royal ICC) and Plaza
along with the beginning of construction on
The Green residential apartments and the
commercial tower, Kingsgate.
The RNA and project partner Lend Lease
unveiled stage two of the Brisbane
Showgrounds Regeneration Project in
2014. Queensland Premier at the time,
Campbell Newman, announced the
progress in the landmark historic $2.9
billion regeneration.

The Green
The Green is Lendlease’s first residential apartment building within the
Brisbane Showgrounds precinct. Residents moved into The Green in
September, 2015. Designed by Cox Rayner, The Green is the perfect mix of
urban life with an emphasis on green space.
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King Street
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Construction commenced on King Street in 2014 and continued in 2015.
Brisbane’s new retail high street, linking St Paul’s Terrace to Gregory Terrace,
is now open to traffic. The new street will feature bars, cafés and restaurants
with wide footpaths, designed to enhance street dining. King Street will
complement the evolving showgrounds and service new residents and
professionals in the area, as well as Ekka guests throughout the show.

Current and planned projects.

MOVING FORWARD

REDEVELOPMENT CONTINUES
2015 was a major year for the project, with
many stage two development milestones
reached. Construction commenced on the
new four and a half star Rydges hotel in
January. Now complete, it provides onsite
accommodation for Royal Queensland Show
(Ekka) visitors, Royal ICC guests and the
general public. Construction also commenced
on The Yards, the newest residential offering
at the Brisbane Showgrounds. The Yards
set a Brisbane record in 2014 when 160
out of the 208 ‘North Yard’ apartments sold
within four hours.

A major milestone was also achieved
when the Showgrounds’ first residents
moved into The Green apartments in
September, 2015. These residents form
part of the 500 residents who will move
into The Green’s 365 apartments across
the five towers located on King Street.
The Kingsgate commercial sector, which
is home to the Lendlease offices and
several other companies, also opened for
business in 2015.

One of the key aims of the Brisbane
Showgrounds Regeneration Project is to
open the showgrounds up for the public to
enjoy year round. On February 8, 2016 the
doors opened to reveal the stunning, 4.5
star Rydges Hotel, restaurant and bar at the
thriving precinct. King Street, which links
St Pauls Terrace and Gregory Terrace, also
opened to traffic and will welcome retail
outlets throughout 2016.
Other planned works include the Large
Animal Pavilion, the refurbishment of Oval
2, completion of The Yards apartments
and residents moving in, completion of
Machinery and Alexandria Streets, new
Co-op marketplace, carparking station and
the completion of the storm warer detention
water tank.

The Yards
The Yards are the newest residential apartments at the Brisbane
Showgrounds. They were designed by award-winning architects Hayball to
embrace and reflect the industrial, rural and urban heritage of this historical
precinct. The Yards will be located where the Auditorium and Short Street
were. The Yards has 401 residences across its towers and 11 terraces.

A milestone in 2015 for the Brisbane Showgrounds Regeneration
Project was the beginning of construction on the new 4.5 star Rydges
Hotel, located in the heart of the Brisbane Showgrounds precinct.
The international hotel, developed by a consortium, comprising Phillip
Wolanski’s Denwol Group of Sydney and Stewart Baron’s Baron
Corporation of Melbourne, will attract more national and international
conferences to the Royal ICC with accommodation now available onsite.
The $50 million hotel includes 208 rooms, the new Six Acres Restaurant,
The Paddock Bar, contemporary design, a swimming pool and a gym. The
hotel officially opened in February, 2016.

Artist’s impression only.
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Rydges Hotel

13

KEY FACTS

LOCATION

ECONOMIC BENEFITS

Gregory Terrace, Bowen Hills, Brisbane, Australia –
1.5 kilometres from CBD.

The regeneration project is expected to deliver $300 million
per annum in economic benefits to Queensland.

INVESTMENT

SIZE

The project value of new residential/commercial/retail
development is estimated at $2.9 billion. This is funded
primarily by Lendlease and through a $65 million loan from
the Queensland Treasury Corporation.

22 hectares and represents the largest Brownfield
development of its kind in Australia. The project includes
340,000m2 of new residential, commercial and retail
buildings, together with an additional 76,000m2 of new
development on RNA retained land.

JOB CREATION

RNA ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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The project is supporting Brisbane’s future economic and
population growth by creating more than 2,000 jobs.
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2016/17 PLANNED WORKS*
•

Retail precinct on King Street progressively opens

•

Oval 2 and surrounding area refurbishment

•

Residents move into apartments at The Yards

•

Completion of Machinery Street and

•

Construction begins on Large Animal Pavilion post

•

Alexandria Street

Ekka 2016

•

Car parking station to be completed post Ekka 2016

Alexandria Park created including refurbishment of

•

Co-Op works commence late 2016

Building 8

* Future dates are indicative only.

REGENERATION TIMELINE
FEB / 2016

This world-class regeneration of a famous landmark
synonymous with Queensland’s social heritage and
culture represents an historic milestone for Brisbane.
It is not simply an urban renewal but rather a
transformation of 22 hectares, 1.5 kilometres from the
CBD, into a vibrant year round destination. For the RNA
and Lendlease, this once in a lifetime collaboration signals
an opportunity to build a legacy for future generations to
enjoy by ensuring the Ekka remains at its rightful birthplace
while giving the Brisbane Showgrounds the facelift it richly
deserves. The regeneration project will ensure the Brisbane
Showgrounds becomes the destination for fashion, design,
lifestyle and culture, hosting world-class events and shows
all year round.

King Street opens to traffic and links St Pauls
Terrace and Gregory Terrace

SEP / 2015
First residents move into The Green

JUN / 2015
Kingsgate commercial sector opens for business

APR / 2015
Construction commenced on The Yards

JAN / 2015
Construction commenced on four star Rydges hotel

NOV / 2014
Construction commenced on King Street, the new 300m
street that links St Paul’s Terrace and Gregory Terrace
‘South Yard’ apartments released for sale
(four months ahead of schedule)

SEP / 2014
Demolition of Commerce Building
The Yards apartments released for sale
Brisbane record set when 160 out of the 208
‘North Yard’ apartments sold within four hours

OCT / 2013
Completion of the Plaza.
Construction commenced on K1, the first
commercial tower at Kingsgate commercial sector
and on The Green residential apartments

MAR / 2013
Royal ICC opens for its first events.

DEC / 2012
Removal of the RNA Administration Building.
Construction on the new 7,000m2 $7.7 million
Plaza commenced.

NOV / 2012
RNA staff moved into brand new 950m2 office in
Royal ICC.

AUG / 2012
Ground floor of Royal ICC opened for exhibition
space at Ekka 2012

OCT / 2011
The Green sales suite opened and the first release
of apartments at ‘The Green’ went on sale.

SEP / 2011
Designs of the Lend Lease commercial
development component unveiled.
Work began on related infrastructure.

JUL / 2011
Industrial Pavilion roof removed.
Removal of Frank Nicklin Building.

APR / 2011
Construction began on transforming the Industrial
Pavilion into the world-class $59 million Royal
International Convention Centre (Royal ICC).
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SIGNIFICANCE

4.5 star Rydges Hotel, including the Paddock Bar
and Six Acres restaurant, opens for business
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ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW
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“...to celebrate and champion
agriculture and the essential
role it plays in the everyday
lives of Queenslanders”

OVERVIEW
For 138 years, the Royal Queensland Show (Ekka) has been bringing the country and city together to celebrate and champion
agriculture and the essential role it plays in the everyday lives of Queenslanders.

The Ekka symbolises Queensland culture and reflects the state’s diversity and heritage. The iconic event provides reward and
recognition for those dedicated to producing the best of the best, from champion bulls to blue ribbon worthy fruit cakes.
On average, more than 400,000 people come together to enjoy and experience Queensland’s largest community event.
The Ekka is the people’s show, unique in the Australian landscape due to its rich generational connection with Queenslanders.
The 2015 show welcomed 21,000 competition entries, 10,000 animals, a smorgasbord of award-winning food and wine, tens
of thousands of school children and hours of free family entertainment including our exclusive night program EkkaNITES, which
featured a fireworks spectacular.
Since 1876, the RNA has been the proud custodian of this historic event and is committed to preserving a wonderful legacy
for future generations to enjoy.
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The 2015 show was no different, bringing the country and city together for a 10 day celebration of what makes Queensland great.
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ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW
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Australian Exclusive
EKKANITES SPECTACULAR
Once again the Ekka’s world class night show, EkkaNITES, lit
up the Main Arena and left crowds on the edge of their seats
with non-stop extreme action, star performers, galloping
illuminated horses, monster trucks and a spectacular
fireworks finale.
The brand new night program for 2015 was created
exclusively for Ekka by entertainment extraordinaire Jack
Ellison, who is an international special events producer. Jack
has worked on blockbuster films including James Bond
Quantum of Solace and Mission Impossible 2. His inspiration
behind EkkaNITES was ‘more excitement, more extreme and
more action’.
For the third year in a row, Mr Ellison and his team created a
show like no other, which took entertainment to the extreme.
The show featured a brand new design, Australia’s own
country music legend James Blundell, FMX Freestyle Kings,
the new X-treme Action Show – featuring Transformers with
Bumblebee and Optimus Prime themed Monster Trucks. The
night culminated in a spectacular fireworks finale, with never
before seen fireworks, including fire ball explosions, skylighter
fireworx bazookas and coloured flames.

COMPETITIONS REMAIN
AT THE HEART OF THE SHOW
Since the very first Exhibition in 1876, the Ekka has showcased
the best of the best. From champion bulls to giant pumpkins,
the Ekka proudly showcases Australian produce.
This year saw the introduction of a number of new classes
across the Ekka competitions including Class 38 in the
Prime Beef Paddock to Palate Competition, a feature Terrier
Specialty Show in the Canine Competition, a new Cake
Decorating Contemporary – Novice Class in Fine Arts, a
Kitten Feature Show in the Champion Cat Show and the
300mm Standing Block Hard Hitting Championship of
Australia in the Woodchop and Sawing Competition.
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This year’s competitions attracted 21,000 entries across
13,000 classes in 48 competition sections. More than 4,000
exhibitors travelled from across the country to compete for
their chance to win a coveted blue ribbon.
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YOUR EKKA

ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW

Royal Queensland Show 2015 Grand Champions
Category

Winner

Thoroughbred
Supreme Champion Thoroughbred

Secret Circus, Anderson & Powell Families, Oakey QLD

Most Successful Exhibitor – Thoroughbred

Secret Circus, Anderson & Powell Families, Oakey QLD

Stud Horses
Supreme Champion Australian Stockhorse

Valliview Rivoli Oak, P Lenihan & R Lenihan, Lanefield QLD

Supreme Champion Clydesdale

Oscarville Troy, Judy Peters, QLD

Supreme Champion Riding Pony

Silkwood Miss Prim, Mikayla Vankampen, Tallebudgera QLD

Showjumping
FEI World Cup Qualifier

Made U Look ron easey, Ronald Easey, Quipolly NSW

Farriers & Blacksmiths
Most Successful Exhibitor – Open

Brad Hinze, Baerami NSW

Horses in Action
Champion Hack of Queensland

WBH Entourage, Warren Coyle, VIC

Champion Gentleman Rider

Avoca Tropenglitzen ridden by Peter Ewing, Peter Ewing, Ascot QLD

Champion Lady Rider

Kirralee True Obsession ridden by Jasmin Hunt, Kim Taunton, Worongary QLD

Champion Show Hunter Galloway of
Queensland

Alpine Park Blue Dimples, J Uppington & A Ogilvy & P Lenihan,
Logan Reserve QLD

Champion Pony Hack of QLD – Over 12.2 hands

Headley Park Royal Show, GC Equestrian & Sarah Scotson, Guanaba QLD

Champion Medium or Heavy Horse –
Over 14 Hands

Carbery Estate Archie, Trevor Kohler, Pittsworth QLD

Woodchop & Sawing
Champion Axeman of Show

Laurence M O’Toole, Doncaster VIC

Feline
Supreme All Breeds Feline of Show

Miakoschka Jaromira, Marie Mahoney, Burpengary QLD

Champion Fish of Show

Steve Werner, Jimboomba QLD
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Pisciculture

Grand Champion Exhibit of Show

Planted Aquarium “Uluru Dreaming”, Fishchick Aquatics, Annerley QLD
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Champion Honey of Show

Poultry
Grand Champion Fowl of Show

Bantam Pekin White Cockerel, Geoffrey Edards, Maryborough QLD

Grand Champion Waterfowl of Show

Indian Runner White Drake, Terry & Linda Taylor, Burua QLD

Grand Champion Bantam of Show

Bantam Pekin White Cockerel, Geoffrey Edards, Maryborough QLD

Agricultural Hall
Best Collection of Exhibitors from the Districts

Darling Downs District

Champion Exhibitor –
Home Grown Giant Vegetable

Geoff Frohloff, Minden QLD

Apiculture
Albert Payne, Esk QLD

Category

Winner

Canine
Champion of Show

Tvorimir Witness the Miracle, Russion Black Terrier, Natalia Sadykova, Crows Nest QLD

Quilts
Best of Show

Pam Hill, On The Wing, Manly QLD

Fine Arts
Grand Champion Cake Decorating Entry

Pauline Herrmann, Traditional Wedding Cake, Ipswich QLD

Grand Champion Exhibit of Show - Craft

Louise Cumming, Embroidery, Wellers Hill QLD

Champion Portrait of Show

Gordon Hooper, Drawing, Windsor QLD

Champion Sculpture of Show

David Mackay Harrison, Zophia, Ballina NSW

Champion Print of Show (photography)

Cailin Gore, Times Be Tough, Warner QLD

Dairy Cattle
Supreme Champion Dairy Cow

Arabella Farming Company, Holstein, Glenalbas Goldwyn Olivia –ET, Brookstead QLD

Prime Beef
Grand Champion Pen of Show

Juandah Grazing, Charolais/Angus, Miles QLD

Stud Beef
Champion of Champions Breed Pairs

Bull - KL Smith, Red Angus, K5X JACKPOT J20, Allora QLD
Cow or Heifer - G & K Iseppi, Red Angus, GK RED BELLA 26 G42, Dalby QLD

Champion of Champions Bull

KL Smith, Red Angus, K5X JACKPOT J20, Allora QLD

Champion of Champions Cow or Heifer

C & L Sowden, Limousin, Oakwood Fiddlez, Kingaroy QLD

Interbreed Champion Small Breeds
Bull

Margo Hayes, Ausline, VITULUS JUST DO IT, Thorton QLD

Cow or Heifer

Margo Hayes, Ausline, VITULUS HIP HOP, Thorton QLD

Led Steer
Grand Champion Led Steer

SN & DN Beaumont and MF & NJ Nicholls, Speckle Park X Charolais, Kyogle NSW

Grand Champion Led Steer Carcass

Sowden & Riley Families, Limousin, Kingaroy QLD

Supreme Champion Dairy Doe of Show

Poldark Splendour, Lesley & Tom Mcdowell, Baan Baa NSW

Angora Goats
Grand Champion Angora Goat of Show

DAUSON 436, Graham Dau, Pilton QLD

Sheep
Supreme Champion Ram of Show

SCOTS ROGER, The Scots PGC College, Warwick QLD

Supreme Champion Ewe of Show

Nelly, Calvary Christian College, Loganholme QLD

Supreme Champion Breeders

Dakabin State High School, Dakabin QLD

Horticulture
Mabel Burnett Shield –
Most Effective Display

Bromeliad Society

Colin Campbell Memorial –
Most Educational Display

Bromeliad Society

RNA ANNUAL REPORT 2015
YOUR EKKA
ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW

Dairy Goats
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“For the first time the runway shows
were taken to dazzling new heights”
FASHION IS A CIRCUS
The new look Natural Fibres Fashion Parades, presented by
Cotton Australia, proved a hit with the 2015 Ekka audiences.
For the first time the runway shows were taken to dazzling
new heights, not only featuring the latest in Australian fashion,
but welcomed majestic dancers who captivated the audience
with their aerial tricks.
The parades featured 19 local designers including the iconic
Easton Pearson, Gail Sorronda, Darb Couture, Brides Desire
by Wendy Sullivan, Paul Hunt, Wil Valor, Irma J Smith House
of Fashion, Pia du Pradal, Tengdahl, White Label Noba,
Sacha Drake, Maiocchi, Urbbana, George Wu, Bora, Soot,
Ubermen, Jack Sullivan and The Cloakroom.

PADDOCK TO PALATE ON SHOW
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The Royal Queensland Food & Wine Show Cooking Stage
was the perfect place for aspiring chefs, foodies and home
cooks. Hosted by Dominique Rizzo, one of Queensland’s
leading chefs, the stage was full of tips and tricks in the
kitchen. Ekka visitors also got the chance to taste some of
Dominique’s delectable dishes. This year the cooking stage
was inspired by the paddock to palate philosophy and was
based around RQFWS Champions on Show including a
cooking with cheese class, cooking with beef and a beer,
wine and cider masterclass with Dominique and beer
connoisseur Matt Kirkegaard. There was even a special visit
from the Queensland Country Women’s Association who
shared their baking secrets.
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AG HALL
HAS A NEW
LEGEND

MATER HOGS EKKA LIMELIGHT
Pigs really did fly at the 2015 Ekka, bringing bumper crowds
to Stockman’s Rest each day of show. Seven-year-old Mater
Vandeleur, with the help of his grandfather Tom, captivated
the audience with their impressive pig training tricks. The
pigs not only raced each other around a track but flew
through the air as they dived into a pool of water. Mater
made international news when his special report for Channel
Seven’s Brisbane Nightly News captured audiences around
Australia and the world.

Ekka stalwart Sydney
‘Syd’ Haag became
the official 2015 Ekka
Legend when he was
crowned the title by RNA
President David Thomas
at a reception held
during the show.
Syd, from Bundamba
near Ipswich, has been
heavily involved with the
show for 67 years. Many know Syd from the Agricultural Hall
where he is famous for the giant vegetables he grows and
his blue ribbon worthy district exhibit displays.
Syd was born into the agricultural show movement and
followed in the footsteps of his grandfather, who started
showing One Farm Exhibits (now known as the district
exhibits) in 1921 at the Ekka.
In 1948, at the age of 16, Syd began his association with
the Ekka and moved on to become an honorary agricultural
judge at the age of 21.
Since 1948, Syd has not missed an Ekka and continues
to compete in the District Exhibits and Giant
Vegetable Competitions.

RNA INAUGURAL
CHARITY FUNDRAISER
For the first time, the RNA’s Charity Fundraiser was held on
the eve of Ekka, in line with the RNA’s charter of helping and
educating rural youth. About 550 guests attended the function
at the Royal ICC to show their support and as a result, 112
IPads were donated to the Longreach and Charleville School
of Distance Education. Special guests included MC, ABC
Landline’s Pip Courtney, former Governor General of Australia
Dame Quentin Bryce (pictured), guest speaker Penny Button and
12-year-old Ellen Gett, who created a film about drought which
was played on the day and had previously aired on Landline.

He and his wife Val have passed their love of agriculture
on to their children and in particular their grandson Thomas,
who has already won prizes in the giant
vegetable competitions.

AUSTRALIA’S FINEST STEAK

Australia’s best steaks, wines and cheeses, sourced directly
from the prestigious Royal Queensland Food & Wine Show
(RQFWS), were all on offer.
The team of chefs from the Royal International Convention Centre
(Royal ICC) showcased their skills, using some of the nation’s
finest produce including the 2015 Grand Champion Wagyu from
AAco and award-winning JBS Australia Swift Premium steak.
Other items on the menu included Mooloolaba King Prawns,
Beef Carpaccio with a truffle oil, a delicious calamari salad and a
vanilla bean cheesecake served with salted caramel ice cream,
along with a selection of award-winning cheeses and wines.

GOURMET PLAZA HITS THE SPOT
The new Gourmet Plaza, located in front of the Royal
International Convention Centre was a hit with Ekka guests.
The open air foodie mecca was filled to the brim with food
stalls and crowds, each day of show.
A new initiative introduced in 2015, Gourmet Plaza proved
to be a key meeting and eating point for many visitors to the
show. The new stalls included the Royal Queensland Food &
Wine Show stall which served gourmet beef rolls, Brisbane
favourite Kwan Bros with their popular baos, Chiptease
which constantly had a line out the front, as did trendy
Brisbane phenomenon Doughnut Time.
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The Royal Queensland Steakhouse provided a five star
experience for Ekka guests, serving Australia’s finest produce.
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EKKA EDUCATION

THE FUTURE OF AG

Kids came from across the state to experience Queensland’s
largest classroom, the Ekka. Throughout the 10 days of show
they were inspired, educated and entertained.

In 2015, three Australian Agricultural Scholarships were
presented during the show at the President’s Reception.

Travelling from as far as Mackay and Kingaroy, thousands
of students and teachers made the journey to the state’s
most loved event where they learnt about the importance of
agriculture and the role it plays in their everyday lives.
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AGRICULTURE INSPIRES
YOUNG EKKA GUESTS
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The three winners, Lawrence Sehmish-Lahey and Hannah Vicary
from the University of Queensland and Rebecca Clapperton from
the University of New England, were awarded the scholarships
based on their commitment to regional Australia and their
involvement in their local agricultural societies.
Each winner was awarded a $2,000 scholarship towards their
agricultural studies, which was sponsored by the Australian
Council of Agricultural Societies (ACAS) and Coca Cola.

The state-of-the-art Royal ICC played home to the new Ekka
Education Precinct. The new precinct was filled with students
eager to learn more about Australian agriculture. The Education
Stage featured the Big Bang Education Show, how cotton is
grown, and students got their hands dirty at the Little Farmers
Patch. The Bubble Muffin Kids Cooking Club was also a popular
choice with students as they were given the opportunity to
produce their own edible gardens.

EKKA COOKING CLUB

GREEN THUMBS

WHEELING OUT THE WINNERS

The new Little Farmers Patch proved a hit with junior Ekka
guests with more than 5,000 children participating. Students
were encouraged to take part in the hands on activities,
which included digging for and sorting through vegetables in
the special farmers patch. This program taught children how
vegetables were grown and where their food comes from.

Junior green thumbs and budding horticulturalists got creative while
giving their wheelbarrows a new lease on life. The 2015 Ekka School
Garden Competition called on entrants to create vegie gardens
in their refurbished wheelbarrows, following the theme ‘from the
garden to the kitchen’. Entries included the Lyndhurst Superheroes,
The Seven Hills of Rome Gang and the winning ‘The High Tea
Honeys’ from reigning champions Seven Hills State School.

The Bubble Muffin Kids Cooking Club created a fun and
entertaining environment where children were given the
opportunity to produce their own edible gardens with edible soil.
The cooking shows encouraged parents and guardians to join in
as children were taught and guided through a cooking syllabus
and exposed to practical food examples.

40,000+ CHEESE TOASTIES

5,000 STEAKS FROM
THE ROYAL QUEENSLAND
STEAKHOUSE
3,500+ BRAVE EKKA-GOERS
ATTEMPTED TO EAT THE
WORLD’S HOTTEST CHILLI

FACEBOOK
FRIENDS

TWITTER
FOLLOWERS

LIKES/COMMENTS/
SHARES/POST
CLICKS

ON THE EKKA FACEBOOK PAGE

FACEBOOK
REACH
OF
SEVEN-YEAR-OLD PIG TRAINER MATER’S
7 NEWS REPORT

180,000+ DAGWOOD DOGS
AMOUNT OF PEOPLE EKKA FACEBOOK
POSTS HAVE REACHED

37,000+ CANS OF RUM
AND COLA

7,000+ CWA SCONES

6,000+ LONGBOARD
BURGERS

IN THE CLASSROOM
■

7,500 EKKA LEARNING TRAIL
BOOKLETS WERE DISTRIBUTED

■

5,000 KIDS PARTICIPATED

IN THE LITTLE FARMERS PATCH
■

2,000 COTTON SEED

PACKETS WERE DISTRIBUTED
BY COTTON AUSTRALIA

#EKKA
INSTAGRAM
POSTS

2589
CANINE

2589
HORSE

1687
POULTRY

1330
WOODCHOP
AND SAWING

1284

EKKA’S LARGEST COMPETITIONS IN 2015

130,000+ ICONIC EKKA
STRAWBERRY SUNDAES

DIGITAL FAST FACTS

PHOTOGRAPHY

1109
STUD BEEF

INSTAGRAM
FOLLOWERS

QUEENSLAND’S
LARGEST MARKETPLACE
ALLOCATED
RETAIL SPACES

552
COMPANIES
345
FOOD AND
BEVERAGE OUTLETS
121
COMMERCIAL OUTLETS
INCLUDING
20 SHOWBAG STANDS
310
RIDES
AND GAMES
121

975
CREATIVE ART

AND CRAFT

961

COOKERY

906
PAINTING AND

DRAWING

556

LED STEER
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FOODIE FACTS
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ROYAL QUEENSLAND FOOD & WINE SHOW
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“The prestigious Royal Queensland
Food & Wine Show (RQFWS)
is dedicated to celebrating
the nation’s best of the best”

OVERVIEW

GET THE SCOOP

The prestigious Royal Queensland Food & Wine Show
(RQFWS) is dedicated to celebrating the nation’s best of the
best produce and continues to unearth Australia’s top food
and wine products, year after year.

A “stunning” chocolate gelato from Maleny in Queensland
was crowned Australia’s best at the 2015 RQFWS. Colin
James Fine Foods’ Chocolate Gelato beat 160 ice cream,
gelato and sorbet entries to win the Majors Group Grand
Champions Ice Cream, Gelato or Sorbet of Show.

The seven competitions held in 2015 included the Cheese
& Dairy Produce Show, Ice Cream, Gelato and Sorbet
Competition, Branded Lamb Competition, Branded
Beef Competition, Royal Queensland Wine Show,
Sausage King Competition and the Ham, Bacon and
Smallgoods Competition.

Taking out top honours in the Cheese and Dairy Produce
Show was Berrys Creek Gourmet Cheese from Victoria,
winning The Grand Champion Dairy Product of Show for
their cheese ‘Riverine Blue’.

LEGENDAIRY STUDENTS

MUCH AT STEAK

For the second year in a row, South East Queensland’s
Sandgate District State High School and Caboolture State
High School took out the champion trophies at the 2015
RQFWS Student Made Cheese Competition. Sandgate
students took out the Mould Ripened Cheese-White
category for their creamy camembert while Caboolture
State High School was crowned best blue in the Mould
Ripened-Blue category.

Confirming that Queensland produces some of the best
beef in the world, a Darling Downs Wagyu staked its claim
as the nation’s finest in the RQFWS’s prestigious Branded
Beef Competition.

The Student Made Cheese Competition was judged once
again by renowned dairy connoisseur Russell Smith, a
RQFWS Chief Judge and Ueli Berger, an award-winning
cheese maker from King Island Dairy.

The Wagyu, produced by Australian Agricultural Company
(AACo), took out the coveted John Kilroy Cha Cha Char
Grand Champion Branded Beef of Show beating 40 other
entries in the grass fed, grain fed, open class, Wagyu (marble
score of 1-5) and Wagyu (marble score 6+) categories.
Australia’s best lamb was taken out for the second year in a
row by Tasmanian Royal for its branded lamb product, sold
by Melrose Wholesale Meats based in Morningside, Brisbane.

“A Darling Downs Wagyu staked
its claim as the nation’s finest in
the RQFWS’s prestigious Branded
Beef Competition”
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In 2015 the RQFWS attracted more than 2800 entries and saw
a 20 per cent increase in entry numbers across the Cheese &
Dairy Produce and Ice Cream, Gelato and Sorbet Competitions
combined. A 20 per cent increase in the Branded Beef and
Branded Lamb Competitions was also recorded. Meanwhile
the Royal Queensland Wine Show (RQWS) has enjoyed a 30
per cent increase in entries since 2014

27

A PASSION FOR PRODUCE

ROYAL QUEENSLAND FOOD & WINE SHOW

“Since 2014, the RQWS
has seen a 30 per cent increase
in entry numbers”

CHARDONNAY
CROWNED
TOP DROP
The Royal Queensland
Wine Show (RQWS) is
one of Australia’s oldest
wine competitions and
in 2015 experienced
an increase in both
entries and exhibitors.
Since 2014, the RQWS
has seen a 30 per
cent increase in entry
numbers.
2015 Chief Judge
and award-winning
winemaker PJ Charteris, with his team of expert judges,
tasted 2186 wines from 291 Australian wineries before
they crowned Australia’s best.

GRAPE GRAZING
More than 500 of Brisbane’s who’s who descended on
the Brisbane Showgrounds to enjoy some of the country’s
finest wines in July, 2015.
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For the first time, the Royal Queensland Wine Show hosted
‘Grape Grazing by Night … Celebrating Australian Wine’.
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Guests were able to taste everything from award-winning
Shiraz to Semillon, while rubbing shoulders with some of
the nation’s top winemakers and wine judges. More than
2000 wines were on display.
Produce from the RQFWS was also on offer including
gourmet beef rolls, lamb cutlets and the creamiest cheeses.

Confirming that Australian chardonnay’s star continues
to rise, a Hunter Valley 2014 Chardonnay from First
Creek Wines took out the Courier-Mail Grand Champion
Wine of Show.
Shiraz continues to go from strength to strength with
the historic Stodart Trophy for Best Young Red of Show
going to the 2014 Bandit Shiraz from Houghton Wines
in Western Australia while Riesling performed well with
the Brisbane Club Best Riesling of Show bestowed on
Orlando Wines for its 2015 St Helga Eden
Valley Riesling.
Queensland wines also triumphed with Golden Grove
Estate taking out two trophies for its 2014 Joven
Tempranillo – Best Queensland Wine of Show and the
John Chandler Memorial for Best Other Single Varietal
Red of Show.

NUMBER OF ENTRIES

447

CHEESE AND DAIRY PRODUCE

WINE
THE COURIER-MAIL GRAND CHAMPION
WINE OF SHOW
First Creek Wines Winemaker’s Reserve Chardonnay 2014

160

ICE CREAM, GELATO AND SORBET

BRANDED LAMB

2015 Grand Champions

17

BRANDED BEEF
THE JOHN KILROY CHA CHA CHAR GRAND
CHAMPION BRANDED BEEF OF SHOW
Australian Agricultural Company Darling Downs Wagyu

BRANDED LAMB
CHAMPION BRANDED LAMB OF SHOW

41
WINE

Melrose Wholesale Meats Tasmanian Royal

BRANDED BEEF

2186

CHEESE AND DAIRY PRODUCE
GRAND CHAMPION DAIRY PRODUCT OF SHOW
Berrys Creek Gourmet Cheese –
Riverine Blue

ICE CREAM, GELATO
AND SORBET
MAJORS GROUP GRAND CHAMPION ICE
CREAM, GELATO OR SORBET OF SHOW
Colin James Fine Foods Colin James Chocolate

96

SAUSAGE KING

49
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BACON, HAM AND SMALLGOODS
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OVERVIEW
The iconic Brisbane Showgrounds is an all-year-round destination precinct. It’s not only home to the much loved Royal
Queensland Show (Ekka), but home to the state-of-the-art Royal International Convention Centre (Royal ICC) and a number of
world-class festivals and events.
One of the key reasons for the 15 year, $2.9 billion Brisbane Showgrounds Regeneration Project is to generate year-round
vitality throughout the precinct for use by the community. This has been evident throughout 2015 with almost one million
people visiting the showgrounds and Royal ICC at more than 220 events.

•

The two-level Royal ICC building features three flexible halls, seven adaptable meeting rooms, two boardrooms and an open foyer

•

A 1,200m2 commercial kitchen features world-class catering facilities including Air-O-Steam Combi Ovens, capable of serving 1,200
plates in 20 minutes while a computerised system enables us to track and monitor the quality of food being served

•

It fronts a revitalised 7,000m2 Plaza, providing an additional 1,500m2 of exhibition space for indoor/outdoor events

•

A unique feature of the centre is its world-class custom built operable ceiling grid system

ROYAL INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION CENTRE
The $59 million state-of-the-art Royal International Convention Centre and 7,000sqm Plaza have proved a successful investment
for the RNA, with almost 170 events staged at the Royal ICC in 2015.
Designed by Cox Rayner Architects and constructed by Lend Lease, The Royal ICC celebrates the building’s history while
showcasing modern, multi-functional and flexible spaces which can accommodate up to 3,000 people.
The Royal ICC hosted a range of national and international events this year including the PwC Post-Budget breakfast and Brisbane
Advertising Association Christmas Lunch for the third year in a row; Hollywood superstar Arnold Schwarzenegger and world
famous entrepreneur Sir Richard Branson for the Titans of Real Estate conferences and the Queensland Symphony Orchestra
Presents Star Trek Concert.
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ROYAL ICC FACTS
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THIRD TIME LUCKY
FOR BAA LUNCH
The who’s who of Queensland’s media, marketing and
advertising industries descended on the Royal ICC in
December for the annual Brisbane Advertising Association
(BAA) lunch.
For the third year in a row the Royal ICC hosted the sold
out event, which welcomed 800 people for a Christmas
networker like no other while raising funds for charity.
BAA was founded in 1989 to encourage social interaction
among the various facets of the advertising sector while
donating funds to worthwhile charities and causes.
Since 1995, BAA has donated almost $1 million to charities
and members in need.

ROYAL ICC EVENTS*

2109
1737

GUESTS

PWC POST BUDGET BREAKFAST

GUESTS

QUEENSLAND SYMPHONY
ORCHESTRA PRESENTS
STAR TREK CONCERT

1500
1244

GUESTS

UQ ENGINEERING BALL

GUESTS

FLIGHT CENTRE QUEENSLAND
END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
AWARDS DINNER

1000

GUESTS

850

GUESTS

650

GUESTS
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THE ENTREPRENEURS’
UNCONVENTION WITH SPECIAL
GUEST SPEAKERS JACK DELOSA
AND MICHELLE BRIDGES
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QUEENSLAND REAL ESTATE
AGENTS’ SUMMIT 2015 WITH
SPECIAL GUEST SPEAKER
ARNOLD SCHWARZENEGGER

QUEENSLAND
SYMPHONY ORCHESTRA
Royal ICC guests had the chance to see Star Trek™ Live
in Concert, with Academy Award ®-winning composer
Michael Giacchino’s score performed live by the Queensland
Symphony Orchestra in February.
Star Trek Live In Concert boldly went where no one had gone
before with the intergalactic concert attracting more than
1700 guests to the Royal ICC.

QUEENSLAND REAL ESTATE AGENTS’
SUMMIT 2015 WITH SPECIAL GUEST
SPEAKER RICHARD BRANSON

820
790

GUESTS

QUEENSLAND TRAINING AWARDS

GUESTS

BRISBANE ADVERTISING ASSOCIATION
CHRISTMAS LUNCH
*numbers are approximate

“The Royal ICC chefs are
passionate about supporting local
producers and working directly
with Australian farmers.”

KEEPING IT LOCAL
The paddock to palate philosophy continued to shine in
the 2015 Royal ICC menus, which were influenced by
award-winning, local produce.
Nowhere else in the country could convention centre
guests enjoy produce awarded gold, silver and bronze
medals in our prestigious Royal Queensland Food
and Wine Show (RQFWS) and the iconic Royal
Queensland Show (Ekka).
Some of the stars of the menu included the 2015 winner
of Australia’s best lamb, Tasmanian Royal, the awardwinning JBS Australia ‘Swift Premium Striploin’ from
Western Queensland, the Grand Champion cheese Mil
Lel Superior parmesan along with a selection of trophy
winning wines and ice creams.

AUSTRALIAN
INNOVATORS INSPIRE
Australia’s top entrepreneurs took over the Royal ICC
during the Entrepreneurs’ Unconvention, held for the first
time in 2015 at the venue.
A selection of high profile entrepreneurs shared their
secrets to success, including Jack Delosa - the man
behind ‘The Entourage’, who is an investor, best-selling
author and BRW Young Rich List member, along with TV
star and fitness expert Michelle Bridges.
More than 1000 people attended the
Entrepreneurs’ Unconvention.
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The Royal ICC chefs are passionate about
supporting local producers and working directly
with Australian farmers.
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A TOUCH OF STARDOM HITS THE ROYAL ICC
The Royal International Convention Centre (Royal ICC) played host to iconic entrepreneur Sir Richard Branson and Hollywood
superstar Arnold Schwarzenegger in 2015.
Mr Branson, the founder of Virgin group and one of the most successful businessmen of our time, was at the Royal ICC for the
prestigious ‘Titans of Real Estate’ conference in September.
More than 650 guests had the chance to listen and talk with some of Australia’s most successful real estate moguls including
Glen Twiddle – the real estate marketer who brought Arnold Schwarzenegger to the Royal ICC in March and John McGrath one of the most influential figures in the Australian property industry.
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The highlight of the conference was the insightful talk by Sir Richard Branson, followed by a meet and greet for VIP guests.
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“Australia’s largest German Festival,
Oktoberfest, returned to the
Brisbane Showgrounds in 2015 for
a celebration like no other. ”

QUEENSLAND’S LARGEST
EVENTS PRECINCT
The Brisbane Showgrounds has proved itself as the
destination for some of Brisbane’s most popular events and
as a thriving music precinct.
Almost 400,000 people attended 54 events held at the
showgrounds in 2015 including the largest event, Queensland
Caravan, Camping & Touring Holiday Show which attracted
70,000 people.
Festival goers were treated to some of Australia’s top
events, right on their doorstop. More than 70,000 people
rocked out to Soundwave, Stereosonic and St Jerome’s
Laneway Festival, as well as getting their German on at
Oktoberfest and celeb spotting at Mercedes Benz Fashion
Festival Brisbane.

OKTOBERFEST
Australia’s largest German Festival, Oktoberfest, returned
to the Brisbane Showgrounds in 2015 for a celebration like
no other.
For the eighth year in a row, the showgrounds were
transformed into an authentic German marketplace filled
with live music, gourmet German food and craft beers for
Oktoberfest Brisbane.
More than 35,000 pretzel loving visitors attended the event
over two weekends.
Not only was the marketplace filled with German food and
beer, but there was dancing, rides and the sounds of the
Bavarian Oktoberfest Band, direct from Munich.

In May, 34 events were held in 30 days across the
showgrounds. A series of national and local events featuring
rugby league stars, politicians and financial experts were
in attendance.
Major events included the Labour Day Festival which attracted
30,000, the Illumi Run, the Pool, Spa and Outdoor Living Expo,
the Brisbane Model Train Show and the Price Waterhouse
Coopers (PwC) Federal Budget Breakfast, which featured
former Australian Prime Minister John Howard as key speaker.
It was one of the busiest months at the showgrounds and
Royal ICC since the convention centre opened in March, 2013.
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BUMPER MAY
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345pax

QUEENSLAND RUGBY
LEAGUE NAMING OF THE
TEAM LUNCH

620pax

QUEENSLAND CARAVAN,
CAMPING & TOURING
HOLIDAY SHOW 2015

LARGEST ATTENDED
EVENTS AT BRISBANE
SHOWGROUNDS*

21,000

SOUNDWAVE
2015

25,000
LABOUR DAY
FESTIVAL

STEREOSONIC

55,000

MERCEDES-BENZ
FASHION FESTIVAL
BRISBANE

47,000

22,055

NATIONAL 4X4 &
OUTDOOR SHOW 2015

28,000
BRIDGE TO
BRISBANE

15,000

THE PRE-CHRISTMAS
CARAVAN & CAMPING
SALE 2015

*numbers are approximate
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MBFF PUTS BEST FOOT FORWARD
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The who’s who of the Australian fashion industry
descended on the Brisbane Showgrounds in August for
the tenth anniversary of Mercedes-Benz Fashion Festival
(MBFF) Brisbane.
For the first time, the elite fashion event was held in the
historic John Reid Pavilion. The new location allowed
MBFF to accommodate more guests than ever before
and create a spectacular new stage. The pavilion was
completely transformed and was the perfect location
for fashion’s elite to celebrate MBFF’s tenth anniversary
in style.
Some of the country’s top designers, including Aje, Alex
Perry, Easton Pearson, Yeojin Bae, Paul Hunt and Nicola
Finetti showcased their designs on the Brisbane catwalk.

OFFICE

BEARERS
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David Thomas

Daniel (Dan) L O’Connor

BCom LLB Hons Qld MAICD

DipTchng BCAE BEdSt Qld LLB QUT
LLM Qld FAIM MAICD

PRESIDENT

David Thomas became the RNA President
in 2011 after serving on the Council for
nine years, the last two as Senior VicePresident. He participates in all activities of
the association and is Chair of the Council,
Executive Committee and the Council
Nomination Committee. As president he
is not a member of any council or show
committees as per convention. David is a
Justice of the Supreme Court of Queensland,
having previously been senior partner at
Minter Ellison Lawyers in Brisbane with more
than 30 years’ experience as a lawyer.
From 2012 to October 2014 he served
as the Deputy President of the Royal
Agricultural Society of the Commonwealth
(RASC) and remains a Trustee of the RASC.
He is Chair of the Queensland Maritime
Museum, Deputy Chair of Queensland Ballet
and a Director of The Society of The Sacred
Advent Schools Pty Ltd, which is the trustee
of St Margaret’s and St Aidan’s Anglican
Girls Schools. He is an Adjunct Professor at
Murdoch University.

SENIOR VICE-PRESIDENT

Dan O’Connor is Deputy President of
the Industrial Court of Queensland and
a Deputy President of the Queensland
Industrial Relations Commission. He has
been an RNA Councillor since 2000, has
served as Honorary Treasurer and Junior
Vice-President and was elected Senior
Vice-President in September 2011. He is
actively involved in the RNA and oversees
many aspects of show planning including:
Chairman of the Entertainment and Appeals
and Disciplinary Committees and a member
of Horse and Arena Committee. He is a
Trustee of The Royal Agricultural Society of
the Commonwealth. In addition, he is involved
in a number of not-for-profit organisations,
in particular a Trustee of the Edinburgh
Declaration Trust, a member of the Governing
Council of the Judicial Conference of Australia
and Chairman of the Council of the Anglican
Church Grammar School.

Angus G Adnam

JUNIOR VICE-PRESIDENT
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Managing Director of AAA Livestock Services
Pty Ltd, Angus Adnam has brought a wealth
of experience and energy to the RNA Council
since his appointment in November 2005.
An RNA Steward and Honorary Council
Steward since 1978, he was elected Junior
Vice-President in September 2011 and is
a member on the Executive, Beef Cattle,
Joint Stock, Agricultural Hall and Industry
Committees. He is Chairman of the Food and
Wine, and House and Catering Committees.
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HONORARY TREASURER
BA, FCA, MAICD
Tim Rothwell joined the Council in October
2013. He is currently a member of the
Executive, Finance, Audit, Development, HR
& Remuneration, Industry & Sponsorship
and Dairy Cattle & Goat Committees. He
was Chief Financial Officer of Brisbane
Airport Corporation for 16 years. He is board
member of Airservices Australia. He has
extensive experience in general, financial,
project, property and event management and
board matters. He is Chair of the Oz Harvest
Brisbane Champions Group and on the Audit
and Finance Committee of Wesley Mission
Brisbane, having been its inaugural chair and
a board member for 10 years.

Ross H Douglas
Retired grazier Ross Douglas was elected
to the RNA council in 2004. He has served
on many of its committees. He is currently
a member of the Executive committee,
Finance and Audit committees, Appeals and
Disciplinary committee, Education and the
Future, and the Joint Stock committees.
He is chairman of the Animal Boulevard,
Education on Show,and the Horse Breeds
Expo committees. He has been involved
with the production of beef cattle and
show societies, both at administrative and
executive levels for 40 years.

Professor Peter Little AM
LLB LLM Qld PhD Bond FAIM FCPA
Peter Little was elected to the RNA Council
in March 2009, is a member of the Executive
Committee and Chairman of the Education
and the Future Committee. He is the Chair
of the HR and Remuneration Committee,
a member of the Finance, Audit, and
Development and Planning Committees
and is co-convenor of the Future Directions
Committee. The Deputy Vice-Chancellor
(Corporate Programs and Partnerships) at
the Queensland University of Technology,
he holds a Bachelor of Laws and Master
of Laws from the University of Queensland
and PhD from Bond University Law School.
He is a Fellow of the Australian Institute
of Management, Fellow of CPA Australia,
and Fellow of Queensland Academy of
Arts and Sciences. He is a Director of
Ormiston College, consultant to McCullough
Robertson Lawyers Brisbane, a Director
of the RACQ Foundation Pty Ltd and is a
member of the Governing Committee of the
Queensland Business Leaders Hall of Fame.

Catherine Sinclair
BSc MA Illinois DUniv FAICD FAIM
Catherine Sinclair joined the RNA Council
in 2007. She brings extensive professional
experience in the corporate sector. She
has specific experience as a Board Director
in transport, defence and the arts. She
has been a tribunal member in the primary
industry sector. Having a rural background,
she is committed to ensuring a vibrant future
for the RNA. Current positions include Chair,
Residential Tenancies Authority, Director,
National Board of CEDA, and Director of The
Consultancy Bureau Pty Ltd. Ms Sinclair
was awarded an Honorary Degree of Doctor
of the University by Griffith University in 2014
and a Centenary Medal in 2001.
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Liz Allen
BA, Dip Ag Admin
A Steward and Honorary Council Steward in
the Stud Beef section since 2002, Liz was
elected to Council in 2014 and is a member of
the Beef Cattle, Dairy Cattle, Dairy Goats and
Quilts Committees. She, in partnership with
family, operate a large-scale stud and commercial Santa Gertrudis
beef operation at Blackall. Liz brings extensive knowledge of
the beef industry and event management to Council through her
previous roles with the RNA, Meat & Livestock Australia, AgForce
Queensland and Qld Primary Industries Week Inc.

career with Ord Minnett. During his career, Don has provided
investment advice to a broad range of private and wholesale
investors. Don and his family have had a long association with
the RNA and he is a member of the Audit, Charities, Industry &
Sponsorship, Pisciculture and Poultry, Pigeons, Birds & Eggs
Committees. Don is a former President of The Brookfield Show
Society and is a Director of the Queensland Club Foundation,
Chairman of the St Aidan’s Foundation, Chairman of the
Brookfield Recreation Reserve Trust and a Non-Executive
Chairman of a private Queensland family’s investment interests.

Ian Ferguson
BA Qld JP (Qual)

Lionel J Blumel
Lionel Blumel has been involved with the RNA
as a Steward since 1986 and was elected
to the RNA Council in November 2006. He
is Chairman and Councillor in Charge of the
Canine Committee and Cat Competition.
He is a member of the Animal Boulevard,
Joint Stock, Leasing and Allocation, Charity and Veterinary
Committees. He is also a Director of Dogs Queensland that
services the Dog World of Queensland. He is a working member
of the Samford Show Society and active member of his local
Community groups. Lionel, a retired building construction project
manager with 43 years’ experience, managed a number of
natural disaster recovery projects across Queensland.

Rod Bower
B. App. Sci. (Food Tech) MAIFST
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Rod Bower is a long standing member of
the RNA and has been a Ring Steward and
Honorary Council Steward in the Horse and
Arena section for more than thirty years. He
served as the Chairman of the inaugural Future
Directions Committee and has exhibited and stewarded in horse
and cattle sections at a number of Queensland and Interstate
shows. Rod, a qualified Food Technologist is Operations Manager
for a family owned food manufacturing business producing
products for national and export markets. He has some 23 years’
experience in food manufacturing and management encompassing
human resources, compliance, information technology, food safety
and quality systems. Rod joined the RNA Council in October
2015 and is a member of the Horse and Arena, Joint Stock,
Entertainment and Future Directions Committees.
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Don Chandler
B. Bus, Member AICD
Don Chandler joined the RNA Council in June
2015. Don is currently an Executive Director
of UBS Wealth Management, having joined
the firm in November 2012 after a 21 year

Ian is a longstanding member of the RNA
who has previously served as an Honorary
Ring Steward and Honorary Council Steward.
An RNA Councillor since 2007, he currently
serves on nine committees - Entertainment,
Young Judges, Horse & Arena, Appeals & Disciplinary, Entries,
HR and Remuneration, Veterinary, Biosecurity and Animal
Welfare, Joint Stock, and Space & Letting. In 2015 he was
appointed Ringmaster following the retirement of Jan McMillan.
He retired as an Inspector of Police at the Ethical Standards
Command and now undertakes a range of community
activities. He has a broad background of community
involvement, currently as Chairperson of Carindale PCYC.

Ian Galloway
Ian Galloway joined the RNA Council in
October 2014. Mr Galloway, a respected
stud cattle breeder from Roma, has served
as President of the Australian Hereford
Society; as a committee member on the
Brangus World Congress and judged cattle in Royal Shows
across Australia, plus at international competitions. He’s
currently a member of the RNA’s Beef Cattle, Veterinary,
Biosecurity & Animal Welfare and Joint Stock Committees. Mr
Galloway operates the Cootharaba Hereford, Duarran Brangus
and Red Angus studs, plus the Cootharaba Bonsmara Stud.
The Cootharaba Hereford stud is Australia’s oldest - founded in
1926 by Ian’s grandfather JJ Galloway.

Michael N Grieve
BEd NT DipEd BCAE
Michael Grieve was elected to the RNA
Council in September 2006. An education
professional and Thoroughbred breeder, he is
a member of the RNA’s Horse and Arena, and Finance and Audit
Committees. Outside of the RNA he is a committee member and
Ringmaster of the Ipswich Show Society and executive member
of the Thoroughbred Breeders of Qld.

Susan J Hennessey
Susan Hennessey brings to the RNA Council
considerable expertise in the area of fine arts
and management. As an RNA exhibitor and
Steward for many years, she was elected to
the RNA Council in 2001. The first female
RNA Councillor elected to the Executive
Committee, serving on this committee from 2006 to 2010, she is
a past member of the Budget and Finance, and Marketing and
Sponsorship Committees. She currently Chairs the Fine Arts
Committee (visual arts and cookery) and is a member of the House
and In-Show Catering, Leasing and Allocation, Entertainment,
Young Judges and HR and Remuneration Committees.

Phil Kesby
CertConst Hons, Licensed Builder (NSW &
QLD) GAICD
Phil Kesby was elected to the RNA Council
in October 2011 after serving as an
Honorary Council Steward and Steward in
the woodchop section for more than six
years. He has more than 34 years’ experience in infrastructure
delivery across a wide range of complex projects. Phil is a
professional board member and is currently Chairman of
Queensland Building and Construction Board, Chairman of
the Brisbane Infrastructure Council and Board Member of
Queensland Urban Utilities. He is also the past Chairman for
the Salvation Army Red Shield Appeal Coordination Committee.

Duncan McInnes
Duncan brings extensive knowledge of the
dairy industry to the RNA Council. His roles
within council include Chairman of Dairy and
Dairy Goats Committees and a member of
the Audit and Finance Committees. He, in
partnership with family, operate a large dairy
property ‘Inverclyde’ at Harrisville as well as an agriculture and
lucerne farm. Duncan is Chairman of Dairy Farmers Milk CoOp which represents 700 members across Australia and spent
twelve years as Director of Australian Co-operative Foods. He
is a Councillor for the Scenic Rim Regional Council and heavily
involved with local community organisations.

Robin McLay
Robin McLay joined the RNA Council in
October 2015 and is Chair of the Horticulture
Committee. Robin brings extensive business
and horticulture industry knowledge through
her past experience in various industries.
These include agriculture, tourism, floristry,
hospitality and horticulture. Currently she owns and operates a
successful award-winning garden centre and bistro. The garden
centre has been a NGIQ state winner for five consecutive years
and in 2015 won the NGIA National Retailer and Business of
the year and Best Garden Centre.

Gary Noller
Dip.T B.Ed
Gary Kieseker was appointed to the RNA
Council in November 2012 after working
alongside the association in a consultancy
position for the Royal International
Convention Centre (RICC). Gary has had
a distinguished career in international hotel management,
convention management and tourism education and training.
He is a leader in strategic human resource management
and has held senior executive management positions with
prominent international hotels including Mandarin Oriental Hotel
Group and Oberoi Hotels International. His expertise and career
has spanned the globe taking him to the United States, China,
Russia, South Africa, Singapore, Indonesia, Fiji, Malaysia, Hong
Kong, the Philippines, Taiwan and Thailand. For the past ten
years Gary has been managing partner in the international
consulting company, PG International Consulting Pty Ltd.

A respected beef seed stock producer from
the Darling Downs, Gary Noller was elected
to the RNA Council in March 2010. Before
becoming an RNA Councillor he was an
active supporter of the association having
judged and exhibited at a number of Royal
Queensland Shows. Gary is Chairman of the RNA Beef Cattle
and Meat Hall, Joint Stock and Young Judges Committees
and a member of the Boer Goats, Entries and Education and
The Future Committees.

William Roberts
William Roberts is a stud merino sheep and
cattle producer and joined the RNA Council in
November 2011 following years of involvement
at the Charleville Show and the Sheep
Spectacular in Goondiwindi and Toowoomba.
He operates his property, Victoria Downs in
Morven, and has been actively involved in committees including
AgForce and the Leading Sheep Committee for South West
Queensland. He is a serving Councillor and former past President
of the Queensland Merino Stud Sheepbreeders’ Association
Incorporated, past President of the Australian Association of
Stud Merino Breeders and Chairman of Wool Poll 2015.
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Brendan Christou
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

BBus QUT MBA Curtin CPA
Brendan was appointed Chief Executive
of the RNA 2012 after serving as Deputy
Chief Executive / Chief Operating Officer
since 2009. A Certified Practicing Account, Brendan started
at the RNA in 2004 as the association’s Financial Controller.
His previous experience spans across the retail, engineering
and financial services industries. He completed his Master of
Business Administration from Curtin University in 2008.
Brendan is a member of the Brisbane Development Association’s
Executive Committee.

Veronica Carew

GENERAL MANAGER,
COMMUNICATIONS
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Veronica joined the RNA in April 2010,
bringing with her 18 years’ experience in
media and public relations. A strategic
corporate communications manager
Veronica has 10 years’ experience in the not-for-profit sector,
at a state and national level, developing strategies and
campaigns to promote the interests of agriculture, education
and the over 50s in the media. Previously Veronica spent eight
years working as a journalist and editor in the Australian print
media. In her current role at the RNA, Veronica is responsible
for developing and implementing integrated communication
strategies, crisis management and public relations initiatives,
media and issues management, and the management of
internal and external communications.
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Andrew Moore
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
BCom BEc CPA MACID Comm Dec
Andrew joined the RNA in 2015 as Chief
Financial Officer. He is responsible for the
association’s finance, procurement, tax and
regulatory compliance, insurance, information technology,
memberships and commercial aspects of the Brisbane
Showgrounds Regeneration Project. Andrew brings with him a
wealth of knowledge as a senior executive with over 24 years’
experience in financial and commercial management, business
development, capital raising, treasury operations and corporate
governance. His professional career spans publicly listed and
private companies, the not-for-profit sector and government
enterprises across a diverse range of industries including
events, energy, mining, sport, hospitality and education.
Andrew is also an active member of the Queensland surf lifesaving community.

Sujoy Dey

GENERAL MANAGER,
OPERATIONS
Diploma of Hotel Management (First
Division), University of Delhi, PostDiploma Business and Hotel Management
School, Luzern Switzerland
Sujoy joined the RNA in October 2011 bringing with him
more than 25 years’ experience in the hotel and conventions
industries across Australasia. In his current role as General
Manager of Operations, Sujoy’s responsibility ranges from
planning and executing all events, to overseeing the set-up and
operations of the Brisbane Showgrounds and Royal ICC.
Sujoy has previously been the Director of Operations for the
Borneo Convention Centre Kuching and had a 21 year career
tenure with the Adelaide Convention Centre.

Lloyd Dunn

Barbara Perrott

BEng (civil) QUT

BCom (HRM) Griffith Qld

Lloyd Dunn joined the RNA in February
2010 in the position of Project Development
Manager and moved to Project Director – RNA Development
in 2014. Over the past five years Lloyd has lead the Brisbane
Showgrounds Regeneration Project team in the design and
delivery as well as managed and coordinated the project
development with the development partner, Lend Lease. Major
milestones of the $2.9 billion regeneration project have included
the completion of the $59 million Royal International Convention
Centre in 2013 and the commencement of King Street in 2014.
Lloyd has an impressive diversified background with roles
including Construction Management, Project Management and
Development Management for major organisations including
Fletcher Constructions Australia, Multiplex, Project Strategies
Australia, Austcorp and Stockland.

Stephen Galbraith

GENERAL MANAGER,
ROYAL QUEENSLAND SHOW
Stephen joined the RNA in July 2012 in the
newly created position of General Manager,
Royal Queensland Show (Ekka) and the
Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show.
He has almost 20 years of experience in the operation and
management of tourism and leisure attractions including Village
Roadshow Theme Parks on the Gold Coast and Asia’s largest
theme park- Sunway Lagoon in Kuala Lumpur. He has worked
throughout Australia, Malaysia, Singapore, Vietnam, Hong
Kong, China and the Middle East. His role with the iconic Ekka
has been in operation and business strategy management and
development to assist the rejuvenation of Queensland’s largest
and most loved annual event.

GENERAL MANAGER –
HUMAN RESOURCES
Barbara joined the RNA permanently in
December 2014 bringing with her 40
years of experience in the public sector. Since 2012, she has
provided strategic and operational HR consulting services to
the RNA assisting the organisation through a major period of
growth and development. Barbara has worked at a senior level
within the Queensland Government, specialising in corporate
services management, leading organisational change,
organisational development, human resource management and
shared corporate services. More recently, she has provided
extensive management consulting services to small/medium
organisations aimed at improving leadership, strategy, culture
and general management practices.

Jago Coyle

GENERAL MANAGER,
VENUE SALES & MARKETING
Jago Coyle joined the RNA in 2015 bringing
a depth of experience from the hotel and
events industries both nationally and
internationally. Prior to being appointed to General Manager Venue Sales and Marketing at the RNA, Jago was the Director
of Sales and Marketing at both the Sofitel and Marriott Hotels
in Brisbane.
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PROJECT DIRECTOR –
RNA REDEVELOPMENT
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The Councillors present their report together with the financial report of The Royal National
Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland (“the RNA”) for the year ended
31 December 2015 and auditors report thereon.
The names of the Councillors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are:
Note

Year of
Appointment

Council
meetings

Executive Committee
meetings

A

B

A

B

Mr A G Adnam – Junior Vice President

2005

10

9

8

8

Ms E T G Allen

2014

10

9

-

-

Mr L J Blumel

2006

10

8

-

-

Mr R Bower

5

2015

1

1

-

-

Mr D Chandler

2

2015

5

5

-

-

2004

10

8

8

6

2004

7

6

-

-

Mr I W Ferguson

2007

10

9

-

-

Mr I M Galloway

2014

10

8

-

-

Mr M N Grieve

2006

10

8

-

-

Mrs S J Hennessey

2001

10

9

-

-

2011

10

4

-

-

Mr G G Kieseker

2012

10

7

-

-

Prof P C Little AM

2009

10

9

8

6

Mr D A McInnes

2011

10

8

-

-

Mr R H Douglas
Mr T V Fairfax AC

3

Mr P Kesby

6

Mrs R McLay

5

2015

2

2

-

-

Mrs J M McMillan

4

1997

8

7

-

-

Mr G J Noller

2010

10

9

-

-

Mr D L O’Connor – Senior Vice President

2000

10

8

8

6

Mr W L Roberts

2011

10

9

-

-

Mr W T Rothwell ‑ Honorary Treasurer

2013

10

8

8

6

2000

3

0

-

-

Ms C J Sinclair

2007

10

8

8

7

The Honourable Justice D G Thomas ‑ President

2002

10

9

8

7

1

Dr W E Ryan RFD

A - Number eligible to attend
B - Number attended

NOTES
1. Retired April 2015

3. Retired September 2015		

5. Appointed October 2015

2. Appointed June 2015

4. Retired October 2015		

6. Leave of Absence Approved June 2015

The Councillors have been in office since the start of the year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.
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RESULTS AND OPERATIONS
The deficit of the association for the year amounted to
$3,600,472 (2014 deficit: $9,758,428).
The results for 2015 have been significantly affected by the
realisation of asset sale proceeds from the first stages of
the redevelopment, offset by the continued recognition of
Interest on the Loan and Depreciation for the Convention
Centre. Neither of these items affect the working cash flow
of the business. The critical measure of Earnings before
Income Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) was
a deficit of $348,944 (this excludes the redevelopment
revenue and expenses recognised of $6,383,197 net) in the
year (2014 surplus of $705,045). This result has been due
to a reduction in revenue from Royal ICC operations and a
loss of a major music festival.
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The closing cash position (including term deposits) of
the RNA is $2,785,326 (2014 $2,400,645). The RNA
has established a working capital facility with QTC of $3
Million. The RNA cash position was anticipated as the RNA
continues to invest in the Redevelopment.
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COMPANY AND STRATEGY
FOR ACHIEVEMENT

INDEMNIFICATION OF
COUNCILLORS AND OFFICERS

The RNA’s mission is to celebrate and champion
the essential role agriculture plays in the everyday lives
of Queenslanders.

The RNA has agreed to reimburse the reasonable costs
(including but not limited to legal fees) incurred by any current
or past Councillor or Officer in relation to the performance of
his or her duties as a Councillor or Officer of the RNA provided:

The RNA’s vision focuses on the ongoing successful
staging of the Ekka at the Brisbane Showgrounds,
establishing the Brisbane Showgrounds and the
Royal International Convention Centre (Royal ICC) as
Queensland’s leading events venues, and transforming the
Brisbane Showgrounds precinct into a destination.
The RNA has also embarked on a redevelopment program
to transform the Showgrounds into a vibrant mixed use
precinct that is utilised all year round. The redevelopment
will also provide the RNA with new and improved exhibition
facilities as well as other income generating assets which
form a significant part of the RNA diversification strategy.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the association is to provide
facilities and personnel to celebrate and champion
the essential role agriculture plays in the everyday lives
of Queenslanders.
The RNA achieves its objectives via a number of means,
however, its primary method is through the staging of
the Royal Queensland Show in August each year. The
Show is the state’s premier exhibition of Queensland’s
primary industries.
No significant change in the nature of these activities
occurred during the year.

(i)

the person is not charged with any offence, or if charged,
is subsequently acquitted of all charges;

(ii)

any investigations or hearings do not reveal conduct by
that person which constitutes conduct which breaches
that person’s fiduciary relationship with the RNA whether
that person is charged or not or convicted or not;

(iii)

the person’s conduct is not unbecoming of a person
holding the position, which that person held at the time of
the conduct.

The level of such reimbursement is to be set by the
Executive Committee.
The RNA has paid insurance premiums for Councillor’s and
Officers’ Insurance since the end of the previous year. The
Councillors have not included details of the nature of the
liabilities covered or the amount of the premium paid in respect
of the Councillors’ and Officers’ liability and legal expenses
insurance contracts as such disclosures are prohibited under
the terms of the contract.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the members of
the Council.

The Honourable Justice D G Thomas
President

COUNCILLORS’ REMUNERATION
Councillors’ receive no remuneration for their services.
Mr W T Rothwell
Honorary Treasurer
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DATED THIS 24TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2016
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STATEMENT OF

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Notes

2015 $

2014 $

Ground Operations and Venue Rental

13,686,423

16,059,863

Show Operations

14,754,903

14,892,295

432,235

430,797

REVENUE

Membership Subscription
Net Land Entitlements

3

10,408,604

-

Other Redevelopment income

3

816,333

-

1,034,855

935,049

41,133,353

32,318,004

Ground Operations and Venue Costs

(7,834,867)

(8,583,654)

Show Operations Costs

(4,944,907)

(4,853,268)

(5,705,915)

(5,642,847)

(12,424,694)

(12,468,179)

Finance costs

(3,928,810)

(4,820,628)

Showgrounds Maintenance

(1,296,717)

(1,497,811)

Other expenses

(3,756,175)

(4,210,045)

(4,841,740)

-

(44,733,825)

(42,076,432)

(3,600,472)

(9,758,428)

-

-

(3,600,472)

(9,758,428)

-

-

(3,600,472)

(9,758,428)

Other Revenue
TOTAL REVENUE

LESS: EXPENSES

Depreciation and amortisation expense

3

Employee benefits expense

COGS – Redevelopment

3

TOTAL EXPENSES
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
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TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
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THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

STATEMENT OF

AS AT
31 DECEMBER 2015

FINANCIAL POSITION

Notes

2015 $

2014 $

Cash and cash equivalents

4

2,785,326

2,400,645

Receivables

5

945,661

1,124,541

Inventories

6

73,093

113,928

Land held for resale

9

461,193

617,637

Other assets

7

824,221

716,439

5,089,494

4,973,190

CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON‑CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables

5

6,112,094

-

Intangible assets

8

184,752

395,217

Land held for resale

9

7,863,285

7,552,162

10

75,291,806

79,714,061

TOTAL NON‑CURRENT ASSETS

89,451,937

87,661,440

TOTAL ASSETS

94,541,431

92,634,630

11

3,152,621

2,522,975

Borrowings

12

5,199,854

353,815

Provisions

13

1,824,317

1,480,159

Other liabilities

14

2,087,437

2,647,348

12,264,229

7,004,297

Property, plant and equipment

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON‑CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

12

62,364,758

63,637,723

Provisions

13

654,501

93,186

Other liabilities

14

18,945,606

17,982,125

TOTAL NON‑CURRENT LIABILITIES

81,964,865

81,713,034

TOTAL LIABILITIES

94,229,094

88,717,331

312,337

3,917,299

276,350

280,840

35,987

3,636,459

312,337

3,917,299

NET ASSETS

Reserves
Accumulated surplus
TOTAL MEMBERS FUNDS

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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STATEMENT OF

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

MEMBERS’ FUNDS

Reserves
$

Accumulated
Surplus $

Total Equity
$

280,483

13,394,887

13,675,370

(9,758,428)

(9,758,428)

(9,758,428)

(9,758,428)

357

-

357

BALANCE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

280,840

3,636,459

3,917,299

BALANCE AS AT 1 JANUARY 2015

280,840

3,636,459

3,917,299

(3,600,472)

(3,600,472)

(3,600,472)

(3,600,472)

(4,490)

-

(4,490)

276,350

35,987

312,337

BALANCE AS AT 1 JANUARY 2014
Loss for the year
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Movement in funds in year

Loss for the year
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Movement in funds in year
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BALANCE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
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STATEMENT OF

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

CASH FLOWS

Notes

2015 $

2014 $

29,059,230

35,426,780

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees

(32,283,014)

(35,207,340)

Interest received

23,469

29,738

Finance Costs

(9,762)

-

(3,210,077)

249,178

Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

(1,068,729)

(707,937)

Proceeds from / (payments for) investments and held to maturity
financial assets

-

1,301,705

NET CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

17

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for land held for sale

(682,262)

(709,439)

Proceeds from Lend Lease

9,537,631

5,257,021

NET CASH PROVIDED BY/ (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

7,786,640

5,141,350

(4,191,882)

(4,905,303)

(4,191,882)

(4,905,303)

Cash at beginning of the financial year

2,400,645

1,915,420

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held

384,681

485,225

2,785,326

2,400,645

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on QTC Loan
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

RECONCILIATION OF CASH

4
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CASH AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
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NOTES TO THE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Royal National Agricultural
and Industrial Association of
Queensland (“the Association”) is
a body corporate under the Royal
National Agricultural and Industrial
Association of Queensland Act 1971
(the “RNA Act”) as amended.
The financial report was approved
by the Council as at the date of the
Councillors’ report.
The following is a summary of
the material accounting policies
adopted by the association in the
preparation and presentation of the
financial report. The accounting
policies have been consistently
applied, unless otherwise stated.

(A) B
 ASIS OF PREPARATION
OF THE FINANCIAL
REPORT
The financial report is a general purpose
financial report that has been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards ‑ Reduced Disclosure
Requirements, Interpretations and other
authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board
and the RNA Act.
The RNA is a not‑for‑profit entity for
the purpose of preparation of the
financial statements.
Compliance with Australian
Accounting Standards ‑ Reduced
Disclosure Requirements
The financial statements of the RNA
comply with the Australian Accounting
Standards ‑ Reduced Disclosure
Requirements as issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board.
New and amended standards adopted
by the Association
None of the new standards and
amendments to standards that are
mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2015
affected any of the amounts recognised
in the current period or any prior period
and are not likely to affect future periods.
Historical Cost Convention
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The financial report has been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as
modified by revaluations to fair value for
certain classes of assets as described in
the accounting policies.
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(B) REVENUE
Revenue from sale of goods is
recognised when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer and the costs
incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.
Risks and rewards of ownership are
considered passed to the buyer at the
time of delivery of the goods to
the customer.
Royal Queensland Show and Ground
Operations and Venue revenue is
recognised in the year it is earned.
Other revenue includes revenue from
car parking, special exhibition charges,
signage revenue and sundry revenue and
is recognised on an accruals basis.
Revenue from the rendering of services
is recognised upon the delivery of the
service to the customers.
Interest revenue is recognised when it
becomes receivable on a proportional
basis taking in to account the interest
rates applicable to the financial assets.
Capital grants and subsidies are
recognised in profit or loss when control
is obtained, usually upon receipt of cash.
Income arising from the contribution
of an asset to the entity is recognised
when, and only when, all of the following
conditions have been satisfied:
All revenue is stated net of the amount of
goods and services tax (GST).
(i)

the entity obtains control of the
contribution or the right to receive
the contribution;
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(iii)

it is probable that the economic
benefits comprising the
contribution will flow to the entity;
and
the amount of the contribution
can be measured reliably.

Contribution income is measured
at the fair value of the contributions
received or receivable. If conditions
attach to a contribution, the
recognition is deferred until the
conditions are satisfied.
All revenue is stated net of the amount
of goods and services tax (GST).

(C) INCOME TAX
No provision for income tax has been
raised as the association is exempt
from income tax under Section 50‑40
of the Income Tax Assessment
Act 1997.

(D) CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

(F) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Classification
The RNA classifies its financial assets into
the following categories: financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss,
loans and receivables, held‑to‑maturity
investments, and available‑for‑sale
financial assets. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the
instruments were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its
financial instruments at initial recognition.
Non‑derivative financial instruments
Non‑derivative financial instruments
consist of investments in equity and
debt securities, trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
loans and borrowings, and trade and
other payables.
Non‑derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs (if
any), except for instruments recorded at
fair value through profit and loss.
After initial recognition, non‑derivative
financial instruments are measured as
described below.

Cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand and at banks and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities
in the statement of financial position.

Held‑to‑maturity investments
Fixed term investments intended to
be held to maturity are classified as
held‑to‑maturity investments. They are
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

(E) INVENTORIES

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are measured at
fair value at inception and subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Inventories are measured at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories are primarily
consumable stores used by the
RNA in its operations.

Available‑for‑sale
Available‑for‑sale financial assets include
any financial assets not included in the
above categories and are measured at
fair value. Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value are
taken directly to equity. The cumulative
gain or loss is held in equity until the
financial asset is de‑recognised, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss held in
equity is recognised in profit and loss.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include trade
payables, other creditors and loans from
third parties.
Non‑derivative financial liabilities are
recognised at amortised cost, comprising
original debt less principal payments
and amortisation.
Financial liabilities are classified as
current liabilities unless the group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

RNA ANNUAL REPORT 2015
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ii)

53

NOTES TO THE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(G) P
 ROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT
Each class of property, plant and
equipment is carried at cost or fair
value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
Property
Property is measured on a cost basis.
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is measured on
the cost basis.
The carrying amount of plant and
equipment is reviewed annually by
Council to ensure it is not in excess
of the recoverable amount from those
assets. The recoverable amount is
assessed on the basis of the expected
net cash flows which will be received
from the assets employment and
subsequent disposal. The expected
net cash flows have been discounted
to present values in determining
recoverable amounts.
Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed
assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives commencing
from the time the asset is held ready
for use. Land and the land component
of any class of fixed asset is
not depreciated.
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Freehold land and buildings are
carried at cost or at independent or
Council valuation.
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CLASS OF
FIXED ASSET

1

Depreciation
rates1

Buildings
at cost

2-26%

Plant and
equipment at cost

7-33%

Sub-stations
and electrical
equipment

5-20%

Straight line depreciation basis

(H) LAND HELD FOR RESALE

(K) PROVISIONS

Non‑current assets are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Provisions are recognised when the
association has a legal or constructive
obligation, as a result of past events, for
which it is probable that an out flow of
economic benefits will result and that
outflow can be reliably measured.

(L) LEASES
(I) INTANGIBLES
Other intangibles
Intangible assets consist of computer
software acquired to assist in managing
the operations of the Association.
Software assets are initially recorded
at the purchase price. Other intangible
assets are amortised on a straight line
basis over the period of 3‑5 years. The
balances are reviewed annually and any
balance representing future benefits the
realisation of which is considered to be
no longer probable are written off.

(J) IMPAIRMENT
Assets with an indefinite useful life are
not amortised but are tested annually
for impairment in accordance with
AASB 136. Assets subject to annual
depreciation or amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or
circumstances arise that indicate that the
carrying amount of the asset may
be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognised where
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset is defined as the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use.

Leases are classified at their inception
as either operating or finance leases
based on the economic substance of the
agreement so as to reflect the risks and
benefits incidental to ownership.
Operating leases
Lease payments for operating leases,
where substantially all the risks and
benefits remain with the lessor, are
recognised as an expense on a
straight‑line basis over the term of
the lease.
Lease incentives received under
operating leases are recognised as a
liability and amortised on a straight‑line
basis over the life of the lease term.

(M) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(i)

Short‑term employee benefit
obligations

Liabilities arising in respect of wages and
salaries, annual leave, accumulated sick
leave and any other employee benefits
expected to be wholly settled within
twelve months of the reporting date
are measured at their nominal amounts
based on remuneration rates which are
expected to be paid when the liability is
settled. The expected cost of short‑term
employee benefits in the form of
compensated absences such as annual
leave and accumulated sick leave is
recognised in the provision for employee
benefits. All other short‑term employee
benefit obligations are presented
as payables.
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(ii)

Long‑term employee
benefit obligations

Liabilities arising in respect of long
service leave and annual leave which
is not expected to be settled within
twelve months of the reporting date
are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflow
to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the
reporting date.
Employee benefit obligations are
presented as current liabilities in the
balance sheet if the entity does not
have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months
after the reporting date, regardless
of when the actual settlement is
expected to occur.

(N) BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs can include interest,
amortisation of discounts or premiums
relating to borrowings and ancillary
costs incurred in connection with
arrangement of borrowings.

Borrowing costs are expensed as
incurred, except for borrowing costs
incurred as part of the cost of the
construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalised until the asset is ready for its
intended use or sale.

(P) COMPARATIVES

(O) G
 OODS AND SERVICES
TAX (GST)

(Q) TRUST FUNDS

Revenues, expenses and assets are
recognised net of the amount of GST,
except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the
Tax Office. In these circumstances the
GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of an
item of the expense. Receivables and
payables in the statement of financial
position are shown inclusive of GST.
Cash flows are presented in the
statement of cash flows on a gross
basis, except for the GST component of
investing and financing activities, which
are disclosed as operating cash flows.

Where necessary, comparative
information has been reclassified and
repositioned for consistency with current
year disclosures.

The RNA from time to time receives
monies from third parties to be held
in trust and used for specific prize
payments where the particular prize is
eligible to be paid. These monies accrue
interest at the average term deposit rate
with any prizes paid deducted from the
balance of the trust fund.

(R) NET ASSET DEFICIENCY
At 31 December 2015 the Association’s
current liabilities exceed its current
assets by $7,174,735 (2014:$2,031,107).
Current liabilities include borrowings of
$5,199,854 (2014:.$353,815). The first
principal repayments are due on the
QTC loan in 2016 (refer to Note 12). The.
principal repayments will be funded by
Lend Lease by way of Advance Land
Payments as stipulated under the Project
Development Agreement (PDA).

NOTE 2: CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(i)

Impairment

All assets are assessed for impairment
at each reporting date by evaluating
whether indicators of impairment exist in
relation to the continued use of the asset
by the RNA. If an indicator of impairment
exists the recoverable amount of the
asset is determined.

(ii)

Useful lives of property,
plant and equipment

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are based upon expectations
of the consumption of the assets at their
acquisition date and are re‑assessed
annually. The actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment may vary
for various reasons from the useful lives
adopted for depreciation purposes.
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Certain accounting estimates include
assumptions concerning the future,
which, by definition, will seldom
represent actual results. Estimates
and assumptions based on future
events have a significant inherent risk,
and where future events are not as
anticipated there could be a material
impact on the carrying amounts of the
assets and liabilities discussed below:
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NOTE 3: OPERATING SURPLUS

Notes

2015 $

2014 $

(LOSS)/SURPLUS BEFORE INCOME TAX HAS BEEN DETERMINED AFTER:
Net gain on disposal of non‑current assets:
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

26,364

-

6,632,575

-

11,224,937

-

527,584

-

3,479,756

-

834,400

-

4,841,740

-

Buildings

4,004,470

3,763,489

Plant and equipment

1,488,397

1,578,546

24,488

24,079

5,517,355

5,366,114

188,560

276,733

29,535

126,623

Interest and Finance charges paid/payable for financial liabilities
not at fair value through the profit and loss

3,928,810

4,820,628

Amount expensed

3,928,810

4,820,628

Redevelopment Net Revenue – K1
Redevelopment Net Revenue - The Green
Cost of Goods Sold - Redevelopment
Land held for resale - expensed
Duties and Taxes
Lend Lease Performance Payments
Depreciation

Sub‑stations and electrical equipment
Amortisation of non‑current assets
Software
Bad debts
Trade receivables
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Finance costs
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NOTE 4: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2015 $

2014 $

31,930

35,990

2,753,396

2,364,655

2,785,326

2,400,645

Trade receivables

413,874

1,095,559

Provision for impairment

(27,086)

(49,010)

386,788

1,046,549

22,749

60,300

536,124

17,692

945,661

1,124,541

6,112,094

-

Cash on hand
Cash at bank

Notes

NOTE 5: RECEIVABLES
CURRENT

Other receivables
GST receivable

NON-CURRENT
Net Redevelopment Receivable – K1 commercial tower (a)
(a) Net Redevelopment Receivable – K1 commercial tower
K1 commercial tower settled in the 2015 year. The non-current Net receivable is the Net Present Value of Land Entitlements offset
by development fees and payments owed to Lend Lease. Monies will be paid into RNADF in the year 2018 and 2019.

IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES
Opening balance at 1 January

49,010

61,888

Charge for the year

16,265

126,623

(38,189)

(139,501)

27,086

49,010

73,093

113,928

335,902

305,850

13,331

591

474,988

409,998

824,221

716,439

Amounts written off (uncollectable)
CLOSING BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER

NOTE 6: INVENTORIES
CURRENT
FINISHED GOODS

NOTE 7: OTHER ASSETS
CURRENT
Prepayments
Restricted cash – RNADF (a)
Other current assets

(a) Restricted cash – RNADF
The RNA development fund (RNADF) is an account established to receive Land Entitlements and other RNA Project Entitlements
and to pay RNA Project Costs and other expenses relevant to the development project.
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At cost
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NOTE 8: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2015 $

2014 $

1,774,675

1,774,675

(1,589,923)

(1,379,458)

184,752

395,217

Opening balance

395,217

580,266

Additions

(21,905)

91,684

Amortisation expense

(188,560)

(276,733)

CLOSING BALANCE

184,752

395,217

461,193

617,637

7,863,285

7,552,162

Software at cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

RECONCILIATIONS
Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning and end
of the current financial year
Software at cost

NOTE 9: LAND HELD FOR RESALE
CURRENT ASSETS
Land held for resale

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Land held for resale

Land held for resale comprises capitalised expenses in relation to the redevelopment project including but not limited to legal
expenses, consultants fees and salaries and wages.

NOTE 10: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
LAND
Freehold land
At cost

96,880

96,880

91,915,928

94,297,222

(24,434,771)

(23,164,173)

67,481,157

71,133,049

Plant and equipment at cost

20,804,222

20,612,604

Accumulated depreciation

(14,170,011)

(12,703,522)

6,634,211

7,909,082

2,687,261

2,645,445

(2,366,773)

(2,342,285)

320,488

303,160

759,070

271,890

7,713,769

8,484,132

75,291,806

79,714,061

BUILDINGS AND GROUND IMPROVEMENTS
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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Sub‑stations and electrical equipment at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Work‑in‑progress ‑ construction
TOTAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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RECONCILIATIONS

2015 $

2014 $

Opening carrying amount

96,880

96,880

CLOSING CARRYING AMOUNT

96,880

96,880

71,133,049

74,204,713

352,578

691,825

Depreciation expense

(4,004,470)

(3,763,489)

CLOSING CARRYING AMOUNT

67,481,157

71,133,049

7,909,083

9,101,287

213,525

386,342

Depreciation expense

(1,488,397)

(1,578,546)

CLOSING CARRYING AMOUNT

6,634,211

7,909,083

303,160

327,239

41,816

-

Depreciation expense

(24,488)

(24,079)

CLOSING CARRYING AMOUNT

320,488

303,160

Opening carrying amount

271,890

217,802

Additions

487,180

54,088

759,070

271,890

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the
beginning and end of the current financial year
Freehold land

Buildings
Opening carrying amount
Additions

Plant and equipment
Opening carrying amount
Additions

Sub‑stations and electrical equipment
Opening carrying amount
Additions

Work‑in‑progress ‑ Construction and other related equipment

CLOSING CARRYING AMOUNT

CURRENT VALUATION OF LAND AND BUILDINGS
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The Association is incorporated under the Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland Act 1971 (“the Act”)
and operates under the provisions of that Act. In accordance with the Act, the Association cannot sell its land without the approval
of the Governor in Council. In the event of an RNA insolvency, the balance site (approx 14 ha which has not been made available
for private development) would be divested automatically to the State Government.
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NOTE 11: PAYABLES

Notes

2015 $

2014 $

1,216,079

1,464,669

1,936,542

1,058,306

3,152,621

2,522,975

CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities
Trade creditors
Sundry creditors and accruals

(a)

(a) Sundry creditors and accruals include accrued retentions of $33,430 (2014: $33,430) which are included in property,
plant and equipment. Refer note 10.

NOTE 12: BORROWINGS
CURRENT
Secured liabilities
Queensland Treasury Corporation loan

5,199,854

353,815

5,199,854

353,815

56,098,727

61,383,111

Cash Advance Facility ‑ Lend Lease

5,899,878

2,254,612

Large Animal Pavilion – Lend Lease

366,153

-

62,364,758

63,637,723

NON CURRENT
Secured liabilities
Queensland Treasury Corporation loan

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Queensland Treasury Corporation Loans
The RNA has entered into a loan agreement with Queensland Treasury Corporation to assist in the financing of new facilities to be
delivered as part of the RNA redevelopment. The loan is secured by a first registered mortgage over the balance site (i.e. the part of the
RNA site that is not within the private development lots to be sold in accordance with the Project Development Agreement) and a first
ranking charge over all of the assets of the RNA. As at 31 December 2015 $59,000,000 (2014: $59,000,000) had been drawn down and
$2,298,581 (2014: $2,736,926) relates to capitalised or expensed interest costs recognised using the effective interest rate method.
Repayments of the principal are scheduled over an 11 year period with the first repayments to be made in 2016. Interest was variable
until 10 January 2014 when it converted to a fixed rate of 7.105%. Interest was paid monthly whilst the loan is variable and then
quarterly once the loan is transferred to the fixed facility.
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The RNA also has a working capital facility with QTC to the value of $3 million as at 31 December 2015 (2014: $2 Million).
This facility was not drawn at balance date (2014: $nil drawn).
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Cash Advance facility ‑ Lend Lease
As part of the RNA Redevelopment Project, Lend Lease has agreed to provide a standby cash advance facility of up to $10 million to
meet funding shortfalls, essentially for Levies and RNA Project Costs. The term and conditions of this facility are set out in a Project
Finance Agreement. This facility will be repaid by future cash flows from the Redevelopment Project. The facility end date is the date
of the final payment of all ULDA levies under the Redevelopment project. Interest is charged on the same basis as the Queensland
Treasury Corporation Loan. Interest is not required to be repaid until there are sufficient funds in the RNADF to repay the interest. As
at 31 December 2015 $5,479,756 (2014: $2,000,000) had been drawn down. Accumulated Interest of $420,123 (2014: $254,612) has
been capitalised to the loan to date.
Large Animal Pavilion ‑ Lend Lease
As part of the construction of the Large Animal Pavilion within the next stage of the RNA Redevelopment Project, Lend Lease has
agreed to lend RNA $30 million to fund the facility. Repayments of this loan facility are to be disbursed from RNADF when the
RNADF has the funds for this to occur. As at 31 December 2015 $366,153 (2014: Nil) had been drawn down.
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NOTE 13: PROVISIONS

Notes

2015 $

2014 $

Redevelopment

750,000

750,000

Lend Lease Performance Payments

302,285

-

Employee benefits

772,032

730,159

1,824,317

1,480,159

Lend Lease Performance Payments

532,115

-

Employee benefits

122,386

93,186

TOTAL NON CURRENT PROVISION

654,501

93,186

761,620

907,200

1,086,187

1,470,628

239,630

269,520

2,087,437

2,647,348

(i)

18,945,606

17,982,125

Lend Lease initial payments

(a)

5,642,400

6,000,000

Contribution to public realm development

(b)

5,827,523

6,196,856

Advance land payments

(c)

7,151,270

7,255,897

Ekka Gross Floor Area (GFA) Waiver

(d)

CURRENT

TOTAL CURRENT PROVISION

NON CURRENT

NOTE 14: OTHER LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Venue hire rent and bond
Deferred revenue

(i)

Other

NON CURRENT
DEFERRED REVENUE
(i) Deferred revenue comprises:

1,410,600

-

20,031,793

19,452,753

(a) Lend Lease initial payments
Under the Project Development Agreement the Developer is liable to pay to the RNA the sum of $6 million as a contribution
towards the RNA’s costs and expenses of entering into the Redevelopment Agreement. These payments are made at intervals
during the first 48 months of the project.
(b) C
 ontribution to public realm development
This amount relates to payments received from the developer for infrastructure works in relation to the Redevelopment Project,
carried out by the RNA.
(c) Advance land payments ‑ Lend Lease
Amounts owing to Lend Lease pursuant to the Master Plan Project Development Agreement (PDA) are secured by:
- a mortgage over the land designated for redevelopment under the PDA
- a conditional contract for RNA to transfer undeveloped portions of the redevelopment land. Settlement of this contract only
occurs if the PDA is terminated because of RNA default and Lend Lease elects to complete that contract instead of enforcing
its mortgage security.
(d) E
 kka Gross Floor Area (GFA) Waiver
Under the revised Project Development Agreement, the GFA restriction has been removed with Lend Lease paying RNA
$1,500,000 as compensation.
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NOTE 15: RESERVES
Trust funds

Notes

2015 $

2014 $

(a)

276,350

280,840

(a) TRUST FUNDS
Trust funds consist of funds received from third parties to be held in trust and used for specific prize payments.
The transfer in the year comprises interest earned on the funds in the year calculated at the average term deposit
rate less prizes paid from the fund in the year.
Movements in reserve
Opening balance
Movement in funds in year
CLOSING BALANCE

280,840

280,483

(4,490)

357

276,350

280,840

NOTE 16: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION
Compensation received by key management personnel of the association

1,888,449

2,090,461

Councillors
At the Association’s Council meeting on 27 October 2000, it was resolved that ‘Country Councillors’ who travel a distance of more
than 100km radius from Brisbane be reimbursed their travel expenses based on Australian Taxation Office rates, as published,
and be able to claim overnight accommodation where applicable for attending official meeting of the Council and the Executive
Committee. At 31 December 2015 there were 5 Councillors (2014: 4) eligible to claim travel expenses.
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Councillors do not receive remuneration for their membership of Council.
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NOTE 17: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2015 $

2014 $

RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS WITH LOSS FOR THE YEAR
Loss for the year

(3,600,472)

(9,758,428)

5,705,915

5,642,847

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and investments

(26,364)

-

Interest Capitalised on loan

165,511

151,999

Interest expensed on loans included in financing activities

4,189,814

4,905,303

Adjustment to finance costs to recognise borrowings at amortised cost

ADJUSTMENTS AND NON‑CASH ITEMS
Depreciation & amortisation

(436,277)

(251,216)

Bad Debts Expense

29,535

-

Net increase in Trust funds

(4,490)

356

(9,034,732)

(337,206)

(107,782)

24,629

527,583

-

40,833

2,009

(89,361)

(759,719)

(640,863)

585,417

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Increase) / decrease in receivables
(Increase) / decrease in other assets
(Increase) / decrease in land held for resale
(Increase) / decrease in inventories
Increase / (decrease) in payables
Increase / (decrease) in unearned income
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

71,073

43,187

(3,210,077)

249,178

NOTE 18: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The name of each person holding the position of Councillor of the Association during the year is listed in the Councillors’ Report.
Mr GG Kieseker is a partner at consulting firm PG International. The Association paid consulting fees to PG International amounting
to $nil (2014: $2,750).
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Other transactions between the Association and Councillors and their related entities are immaterial in nature and occur with normal
customer/supplier relationships on terms and conditions no more favourable than those which it is reasonable to expect would have
been adopted if dealings with non‑Councillor related entities at arm’s length in the same circumstances.
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NOTE 19: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS

2014 $

2013 $

(a) OPERATING LEASE PAYABLE COMMITMENTS
Non‑cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial statements:
Payable
not later than one year

64,097

69,924

later than one year and not later than five years

23,308

87,405

87,405

157,329

42,037

100,275

later than one year and not later than five years

180,812

193,683

later than five years

361,371

287,299

584,220

581,257

The Association has a five year lease with CSG (beginning March 2012) for photocopiers

(b) OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLE COMMITMENTS
Receivable
not later than one year

The Association has re‑negotiated a 10 year lease with Telstra Corporation for ground rental on RNA land commencing 1 March
2010, and re‑negotiated a 20 year lease with Vodafone Network for ground rental on RNA land commencing 1 September 2014.
The Association has also negotiated a 5 year lease for Royals Equestrian Riding School.

NOTE 20: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at reporting date, there are no known contingent liabilities.

NOTE 21: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY
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The Association is economically dependent on Lend Lease (the developer of the RNA regeneration project) for the short to medium
term funding of the QTC loan. This dependency will continue until the net cashflows from the private development lots are sufficient
to extinguish the loan.
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NOTE 22: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE
There has been no matter or circumstance, which has arisen since 31 December 2015 that has significantly affected or may
significantly affect:
(a)

the operations, in financial years subsequent to 31 December 2015, of the RNA or

(b)

the results of those operations or

(c)

the state of affairs, in financial years subsequent to 31 December 2015, of the RNA

COUNCILLORS’

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

DECLARATION

In the opinion of the Council the financial report as set out
on pages 48-64:
1.	Presents fairly the financial position of The Royal
National Agricultural and Industrial Association of
Queensland as at 31 December 2015 and performance
for the year ended on that date in accordance with the
Australian Accounting Standards ‑ Reduced Disclosure
Requirements and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements.
2.	At the date of this statement, there are reasonable
grounds to believe that The Royal National Agricultural and
Industrial Association of Queensland will be able to pay its
debts as and when they become due and payable.
This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution
of the Council and is signed for and on behalf of the
Council by:

Council member
The Honourable Justice D G Thomas
President

Council member
Mr W T Rothwell
Honorary Treasurer
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DATED THIS 24TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE ROYAL
NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL AND INDUSTRIAL ASSOCIATION OF QUEENSLAND
We have audited the accompanying financial report of

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association

effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also

of Queensland, which comprises the statement of financial

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies

position as at 31 December 2015, the statement of

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by

comprehensive income, the statement of members’ funds and

the Councillors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes

the financial report.

comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and the Councillors’ declaration.

COUNCILLORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL REPORT
The Councillors of The Royal National Agricultural and
Industrial Association of Queensland are responsible for the
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced
Disclosure Requirements and for such internal control as the
Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

OPINION
In our opinion, the financial report of The Royal National
Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland is in
accordance with the Royal National Agricultural and Industrial
Association of Queensland Act 1971 (as amended) including:
(a)	giving a true and fair view of the entity’s financial position
as at 31 December 2015 and of its performance for the
year ended on that date; and
(b)	complying with Australian Accounting Standards –
Reduced Disclosure Requirements.

PITCHER PARTNERS

accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those
standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,

J.J Evans
Partner
Brisbane, Queensland
24 February 2016
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financial report is free from material misstatement.
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■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

RNA ANNUAL REPORT 2015
THROUGH THE YEARS

THE CENTRE OF SOCIAL
ACTIVITIES

INTRODUCTION OF
QUEENSLAND’S NEWEST
TECHNOLOGIES

THE FIRST RAILWAY STATION

■■

■■

■■

THE FIRST EXHIBITION

■■
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The first Council included the Headmaster of
Brisbane Grammar, the General Manager of
the Queensland National Bank and
the Editor of the Brisbane Courier and
the Queenslander.*

1877

1876

■■

The ‘National Agricultural and Industrial
Association of Queensland’ was formed
by a group of colonists.

1878

■■

FIRST EKKA RIDE

1879

THE NATIONAL AGRICULTURAL
AND INDUSTRIAL ASSOCIATION
OF QUEENSLAND

1891 1888 1882

1875

HISTORICAL TIMELINE

■■

■■

The Intercolonial Exhibition of 1876 was held
at Bowen Park with an estimated 15,000–
17,000 people attending out of Brisbane’s
population at the time of just 20,600.
5,000 people charged the turnstiles chaos ensued until the mounted troopers
were called to drive back the crowd.
Visitors to the first show were treated
to more than 1,000 exhibits.
The show received 1,700 competition entries
in more than 600 classes.
Entry tickets were large and square for major
patrons, circular for subscribers,
blue for judges and red for stewards.*
Staff included a nightwatchman,
40 stewards and more than 30 judges.*
Entry to the grounds in the morning was
a half-crown or visitors could wait until
after the official opening when the cost of
a ticket fell to one shilling.*
Competitors were usually charged two
shillings and sixpence per entry.*
At the first show there was a competition
for the best manure plus the fastest walking
farm horse.*

■■

■■

The total value of prizes and medals
was between £500 and £600.*

The showgrounds became the centre
of the city’s social activities – musical and
drama groups, football, cricket, lacrosse,
athletics and cycling all had headquarters
on grounds.

Ekka patrons were amazed by telephones,
microphones, electric lights and even an
electric thief detector.

The first railway station opened at the
showgrounds – as an extension of the
Sandgate line.

MAIN PAVILION DESTROYED
■■

Main Pavilion (corner of Bowen Bridge Road
and Gregory Terrace) was destroyed by fire,
on June 13 1888.

EXHIBITION BUILDING
AND CONCERT HALL
CONSTRUCTED
■■

The largest prize up for grabs was
25 guineas.*
The show closed at midnight on Monday 28
August, following a controversial decision to
open on the Sunday.*
Only three breeds of cattle were displayed
at the first show—Durham, Hereford
and Devon.*

Introduction of the first ride in
Sideshow Alley—a merry-go-round.*

■■

Main Pavilion replaced with the Exhibition
and Concert Hall (now known as ‘The Old
Museum’) on the corner of Bowen Bridge
Road and Gregory Terrace. It was built to
replace the RNA’s first exhibition building (Main
Pavilion) which was destroyed by fire three
years earlier. It contains 1,300,000 bricks and
was completed in 23 weeks. 300 men were
constantly at work during its construction.
The building was equipped with a huge pipe
organ by Wallis and Co of London.
The first district exhibits contest was held – nine
regions competed for a prize pool of £175.*

1917

TOOWOOMBA’S
AUSTRAL HALL

1921 1920 1919

EKKA CANCELLED
DUE TO INFLUENZA EPIDEMIC

■■

The first fireworks display occurred
in the Main Arena, beginning another
show tradition.*

JOHN MACDONALD
STAND BUILT

1926 1923

1912 1906 1894

FIRST FIREWORKS

AMERICAN AVIATOR

■■

1928

American aviator Arthur Burr Stone
used the Main Arena to take off and
land a Metz Bleriot Monoplane for the
first ever flight over Brisbane.

NATIONAL SPEEDWAY
■■

■■

■■

EDWARD,
PRINCE OF WALES
VISITS THE EKKA

The National Speedway opened
at the RNA Showgrounds.
The Queensland Country Women’s
Association made its first appearance at
the Ekka.
The first night time ring program
was held following the introduction
of electric lighting.*

SIR DONALD BRADMAN
TEST DEBUT
■■

Toowoomba’s Austral Hall was bought
for £1,500 and re-erected at the
showgrounds, making it the largest
building of its type in the state.
■■

1930’s

■■

ERNEST BAYNES
STAND BUILT

The Main Arena played host to the
test debut of the world’s greatest
batsman Sir Donald Bradman. Bradman
was playing in the first Australia
versus England International Test in
Queensland; he scored a
total of 19 runs.
The first international rugby league game
was held on the Main Arena.

GREAT DEPRESSION
■■

New competitions provided fresh
entertainment for visitors during
the depths of the Great Depression
including goat races which attracted
100 competitors.*

■■

The prefix ‘Royal’ was added
to the association’s name after
it was granted under warrant from
His Majesty King George V.
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■■

The show was cancelled as the
grounds were used as a staging
depot during World War II.

EKKA FOOD TRADITIONS
■■

The now symbolic Ekka fairy floss, butter
board sandwiches, Strawberry Sundaes
and dagwood dogs were introduced.*

QUEEN ELIZABETH II
AND PRINCE PHILLIP
VISITED THE EKKA
ANIMAL NURSERY AT
THE EKKA INTRODUCED
HUMAN CANNONBALL
APPEARED AT THE EKKA
FOR THE FIRST TIME*
INTERNATIONAL
SPRINGBOK TOUR
■■

The International Springbok Tour was held
at the RNA Showgrounds with a two metre
chain wire fence erected to separate the
players from the spectators.

LIVID MUSIC FESTIVAL
■■

The renowned Livid Music Festival was
held at the RNA Showgrounds for the first
time, which later featured performances by
superstar group Oasis and Green Day in 2000
and British music icons The Cure in 2002.

2003 2000 1996

WORLD WAR II

COMMERCE AND EXHIBITION
BUILDINGS CONSTRUCTED

2010 2009 2005

INDUSTRIAL
PAVILION OPENED

RNA SHOWGROUNDS
MASTER PLAN LAUNCHED

SIDESHOW ALLEY AND
WOODCHOP
■■

The Inner City Bypass was constructed, and Sideshow
Alley and the woodchop arena were redeveloped.

REDEVELOPMENT
VISION BEGAN
■■

RNA Council embarked on its vision to keep the
Ekka at the RNA Showgrounds and cement the
long-term financial viability of the RNA through
redeveloping the showgrounds and its facilities.

REDEVELOPMENT PARTNER
■■

Lend Lease was selected as the RNA’s
development partner for the $2.9 billion RNA
Showgrounds Regeneration Project.

MASTER PLAN APPROVAL
■■

■■

2011

1989

2014
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1971 1966 1964 1954 1950 1942 1937

HISTORICAL TIMELINE

The RNA Showgrounds Master Plan was
approved by the Urban Land Development
Authority paving way for construction to start.
One million people attended events at the
RNA Showgrounds in a calendar year.

CONSTRUCTION STARTED
■■

■■

■■

■■

Construction commenced on the Industrial
Pavilion as part of the RNA Showgrounds
Regeneration Project.
The first release of residential apartments at
‘The Green’ went on sale and work began on the
related infrastructure.
British heavy metal band Iron Maiden and
world renowned guitarist Slash performed at
Soundwave music festival which attracted a
crowd of 45,000.
Grammy Award-winners Wolfmother closed the
Ekka’s concert series in front of a capacity crowd.

■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

2013

■■

■■
■■

■■
■■

■■

■■

■■

■■

Construction began on the new 7,000m2
$7.7 million Plaza.
The RNA was inducted into the Queensland
Business Leaders Hall of Fame for its contribution
to the state’s economic and social history.

■■

In an Australian first, Ekka fans were able to
customise their own fireworks on the show’s free
interactive fireworks iPhone app.
New Ekka ticket bundles were introduced and
resulted in a 400 per cent increase in pre-sales.
2012 Australian of the Year and Academy
Award-winning actor and producer Geoffrey Rush
attended the opening day of the Ekka.
In true Queensland style, a cricket match
involving cricketing greats Adam Gilchrist, Glenn
McGrath, Ian Healy, Andy Bichel and Jimmy
Maher, took place on the Main Arena on the final
day of the Ekka.
45,000 revellers made their way to Soundwave
to enjoy performances by System of a Down,
Marilyn Manson, Slipknot and Limp Bizkit.

BRISBANE SHOWGROUNDS
LAUNCHED
■■

BRISBANE SHOWGROUNDS
REGENERATION PROJECT
STAGE TWO UNDERWAY

Royal ICC was fully completed and held its first
events in March 2013.
Completion of the Plaza and Porte-Cochere.
Construction began on K1, the first of the
commercial towers at Kings Gate commercial
precinct, and on The Green residential apartments.

■■

Stage two of the Brisbane Showgrounds
Regeneration Project launched in
September, including the announcement
of the four star Rydges hotel and 401 new
residences, record sales at The Yards and
construction commenced on King Street.
The Royal ICC hosted Her Royal Highness,
The Princess Royal (Princess Anne) and
250 delegates at the Royal Agricultural
Society of the Commenwalth (RASC)
conference in October.
Grammy award winner Lorde performed at
Laneway festival to a record crowd.

HOTEL CONSTRUCTION
■■

Work starts on the 208 room 4.5 star
Rydges Hotel on the corner of Gregory
Terrace and King Street, construction
completed in December

KINGS GATE
■■

Kings Gate commercial sector opens for
business on the corner of King Street and
St Paul’s Terrace in June and becomes the
Queensland head office for Lendlease

FIRST RESIDENTS
■■

In September the RNA welcomed the very
first residents to the Brisbane Showgrounds
in The Green apartments.

Over 400,000 guests through the Ekka gates.
The Royal Queensland Show took home the
prestigious Best in Show title, along with 13 other
awards, at the 2013 International Association of
Fairs & Expositions Awards (IAFE Awards).
Over 54,521 Ekka Facebook friends –
a growth of 75% from 2012.
The Caravan & Camping Show attracted 71,500
people to the Brisbane Showgrounds.
50,000 music lovers descended on the Brisbane
Showgrounds for Soundwave.

* Historical information and statistics sourced from ‘Showtime - A History of the Brisbane Exhibition’ by Joanne Scott and Ross Laurie,2008; and RNA Archives.

RNA ANNUAL REPORT 2015
THROUGH THE YEARS

■■

The ground floor of the brand new Royal
International Convention Centre housed the
Ekka’s canine competition, Agricultural Hall and
horticulture exhibits.

2014

■■

2015

2012

ROYAL ICC’S FIRST VISITORS
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